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DISCLAIMER
Forecasts and estimates may be materially different and may be affected by many 
factors such as the timely release of products and services, dependencies on third 
parties, the overall global economy, competition in the industry and other events 
beyond the control of or unforeseen by Impelus Limited and its subsidiaries.



Introduction
A b o u t  I m p e l u s

Impelus Limited is a technology-led Digital Customer Acquisition and Lead Generation company that uses its 
proprietary technology, tools and data assets to generate leads and customers for our clients. 

Operating in Australia, New Zealand and the UK, the campaigns that we deliver seamlessly target and connect 
consumers to products they value, generating high quality customer acquisitions for businesses at scale, via 
online and mobile devices.

Impelus is providing increasing value and market opportunity to its brand partners which are some of the world’s 
most recognised and leading brands. 

In a rapidly evolving digital and online environment, businesses globally are urgently seeking ways to better 
secure leads and acquire customers through more measurable ROI (Return on Investment) for every marketing 
dollar spent. 

Businesses can reach and acquire their best customers, at scale, through digital channels and most importantly, 
on the devices where consumers are choosing to spend more and more of their time.

Impelus has a passionate commitment to technology innovation and agility that drives its competitive strength, 
and a focused determination to continually succeed in the dynamic Digital Customer Acquisition industry. 

Businesses don’t want clever advertisements 
anymore, they want customers 

Generating traffic and leads is the top marketing 
challenge of 61% of businesses across 99 countries* 

IMS enables businesses to attain measurable Return  
on Investment (ROI) on every marketing dollar spent

87% of businesses use outsourced lead generation*

*	  HubSpot State of Inbound Report, 2018, Ascend2, Lead Generation to Increase Conversions, 2017

Impelus Annual Report 2018   |   1



Technology

Consented People Based Data Assets 
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Optimised presentation of products of personal value and relevance to consumers, leads to higher customer conversion.

What We Do

Digital Customer Acquisition and Lead Generation is the new means and natural evolution of connecting willing 
consumers to businesses and is being used by some of the world’s biggest brands. The growth in Digital Customer 
Acquisition and Lead Generation arises from the demand to see results from marketing spend, keeping ROI at the 
forefront, so Impelus ensures every campaign it delivers for clients has a measurable ROI.

As a technology led Digital Customer Acquisition and Lead Generation Marketing company, Impelus is focused 
on the continual innovation and development of its proprietary technology infrastructure and leveraging it with 
best in market technology partners. 

We generate leads & customers 
for our clients
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How It Works

Craft Client 
Programme

We identify, profile and create portraits 
of our client’s target audience using our 
expertise, in-house tech and databases.

1

Drive  
Traffic

We push the client’s programme via the 
most receptive channels for your target 
audience to drive outcomes.

3

Verify & 
Deliver 
Customers

We work with third party verification partners 
to deliver only the best quality customers 
according to our client’s requirements.

4

Scale &
Optimise

We scale and optimise the client’s 
programme’s performance, so we can help 
them nurture and grow their business.

5

Engage 
Customers 
with DAN

We use a combination of owned, co-branded 
or unbranded assets in our Digital Asset 
Network (DAN) to engage with our client’s 
target audience.

2
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Impelus has more than 200 simultaneous client campaigns now live. The expanding client base covers 
major industries including gas, electricity, telecommunications, finance, health, travel, insurance, 
education, entertainment and FMCG (Fast Moving Consumer Goods). Following are some of the leading 
brands our Digital Performance Marketing operations have delivered quality consumer leads.

Who We Help 

Glossary of Terms

Artificial Intelligence the theory and development of computer 
systems able to perform tasks normally requiring human intelligence, 
such as visual perception, speech recognition, decision-making, and 
translation between languages.

Campaign a course of action an advertiser takes to promote and 
sell a product or service, for example they could do an online ad 
campaign or an email marketing campaign.

Carrier Billing a mobile payment method that allows a consumer 
to purchase a product from a third-party vendor via their mobile 
phone bill.

Consumer Profiling a way of describing a consumer categorically 
so that they can be grouped for marketing and advertising purposes. 
By target advertising to a specific market segment, companies and 
marketers can find more success in selling a particular product and 
increase profits.

Customer Acquisition the art of gaining new consumers through 
various different customer acquisition strategies. Businesses 
consider the cost of customer acquisition as an important measure 
in evaluating how much value customers bring to their business.

Data Analytics the process of examining data sets in order to draw 
conclusions about the information they contain, increasingly with 
the aid of specialised systems and software.

General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) a legal framework 
that sets guidelines for the collection and processing of personal 
information of individuals within the European Union (EU) that came 
into effect across the EU on 25th May 2018.

Lead Generation the action or process of identifying and 
cultivating potential customers for a business’s products or services.

Machine Learning is a method of data analysis that automates 
analytical model building. Using algorithms that iteratively learn 
from data, machine learning allows computers to find hidden 
insights without being explicitly programmed where to look.

Marketing Transaction the action such as a sign up form 
completion, click or view that is deemed the focus metric of 
a campaign.

Performance Marketing is a comprehensive term that refers to 
online marketing and advertising programs in which advertisers (i.e. 
“retailers” or “merchants”) and marketing companies (i.e. “affiliates” 
or “publishers”) are paid when a specific action is completed; such as 
a sale, lead, install or click.

Permissioned Consumer or Customer Leads when a prospect 
explicitly agrees in advance to receive marketing information about 
a certain product or offer they express their permission for their 
information to be handed over to an interested party to contact 
them about that particular product/offer.

ROI (Return on Investment) is a measure of the profit earned 
from each investment. Like the “return” (or profit) that you earn on 
your portfolio or bank account, it ’s calculated as a percentage.
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2018 has been an extremely turbulent year for our company 
and industry. In my first year as Chairman, we have seen 
unexpected surprises, like some telecommunications 
carriers deciding to cease carrier billing services which 
impacted collection of our running off Direct Carrier Billing 
(DCB) revenues, thus impacting our earnings. The Royal 
Commission into the Financial Services sector and the 
resulting loss of consumer trust impacted the marketing 
strategies of many Financial Services companies, some of 
which are Impelus’ clients. 

It has also lessened confidence in some areas of our sector, as 
marketers have struggled to find new ways to drive revenues 
in their businesses. Add to that the macro changes being 
created by the digital revolution, and it is clear that many in 
our industry are struggling to gain clarity on their futures. 

In Europe, privacy protection through the General Data 
Protection Legislation (GDPR) has seen some competitors 
buckle under the new levels of compliance. Impelus has 
been at the forefront of embracing this compliance and we 
see our foresight and preparedness as a major competitive 
advantage and barrier to competitor entry.

I have always believed that those with level heads in moments 
of turmoil and change stand to gain the most.

As Chairman of Impelus, I see my main role as helping the 
Board and the management team to navigate a path to the 
future and set in place a strategy that plays to our strengths 
and experience and take advantage of the current market 
situation.

For me, the starting point is to answer three questions;

1.	 Are we in a growth industry where we can swim with the 
tide?

2.	 Do we have the management skills, knowledge and 
experience to be winners in the sector? And;

3.	 Can we develop a strategy and deploy services that will 
differentiate us sufficiently from competitors to command 
a sustainable premium?

This October I spent a few days at the Global Leadscon 
Conference. Speakers and delegates from around the 
world were enthusing about the growth prospects for the 
Lead Generation Industry. From what I can see, there is no 
slowdown of a company’s needs to find customers. 

Letter from the Chairman
I a n  E l l io t

We at Impelus, as a Digital Customer Acquisition business, 
are right in the sweet spot of using digital devices to deliver 
permission-based leads at scale to organisations, so they can 
engage with prospects to turn them into customers. 

Technology developments to streamline cost and efficacy 
of those conversion tools is progressing at speed including 
application of machine learning and artificial intelligence to 
replace the somewhat blunt instrument (and reputational 
risk) of call centres. I firmly conclude that the need to generate 
marketing permissible leads will only grow at a faster rate.

Turning to management capability, I continue to be impressed 
with Impelus’ leadership, recently strengthened with key new 
hires with a wealth of expertise in Lead Generation. This 
team brings experience, and resilience. They originally grew 
their experience by investing their own money in marketing 
activities to generate leads for their own products. 

Their resilience has been proven by their history of making 
fast and significant changes to strategy, structure and 
systems as the environment has shifted. This willingness to 
adapt, pivot and overcome has been well demonstrated.

On the differentiation front, our development of the Solvers 
products, in its early stages, is seeing Impelus start to deliver 
well beyond the standard ‘top of the funnel’ of prospect 
leads. We are using IP and technology to identify and engage 
prospects, and through digital strategies, move them a lot 
further through the purchase cycle to the point where clients 
just need to conclude the financial aspect of the transaction. 
These customer leads are much more highly valued by our 
clients who thus have the willingness to pay multiples of a 
standard lead cost. 

We have continued our focus on debt reduction and have 
further optimised our cost structure. It is also our intention 
to add more industry experienced directors to the Board in a 
deliberate and timely manner.

Our capital raising initiatives (whilst at a disappointingly low 
share price) have been well supported and we are grateful to 
those investors.

Our transition to a pure play Digital Lead Generation and 
Customer Acquisition business is not yet complete but 
it is significantly advanced. Revenue for the full year was 
$25.51 million and earnings before interest, tax, depreciation 
and amortisation (EBITDA) was $4.55 million. EBITDA is the 
best measure of our earnings when taking into account the 
$29 million impairment that was incurred across the year.  

The management team has worked hard under difficult 
circumstances to ‘right size’ our cost base, strengthen our 
balance sheet and better capitalise the Company for growth. 
Much of the heavy lifting is now done and I am confident that 
we have the right platform for growth in place for Financial 
Year 2019.

I’d like to take this opportunity to thank our leadership team 
and loyal staff both here in Australia and in the UK, my fellow 
directors and our shareholders for the continuing support 
being demonstrated. There is much to do, but I remain 
confident that we can prevail and grow.

Ian Elliot 
Non-Executive Chairman
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In last year’s annual report, we flagged Impelus’ shift away 
from Direct Carrier Billing (DCB) to focus our efforts on 
the digital customer acquisition operations. The impact on 
revenue and earnings was well understood as we moved 
to progressively wind down carrier billing operations in a 
structured and orderly fashion.  

What was not foreseen by us and other DCB participants, 
was the impact of the unilateral decision by one of the major 
Australian telecommunication carriers to immediately cease 
DCB services in March this year (refer ASX announcements of 
1st and 9th February, 16th March and 5th July) and another 
ceasing in August this year (refer ASX announcement of 24th 
July). This instantaneously removed any residual revenue and 
earnings from these operations that we were relying upon 
to scale up of our digital customer acquisition operations 
in Australia and the United Kingdom and improve our 
balance sheet.

Notwithstanding, these challenging and unexpected 
occurrences in the DCB service offering that were beyond the 
Company’s control focused the efforts of the management 
team on fast-tracking restructuring initiatives and 
accelerating our plans to establish Impelus as a pure play 
Digital Customer Acquisition and Lead Generation business 
which have materialised. 

We have been reshaping the foundation of Impelus to achieve 
this. We strengthened the balance sheet, reducing debt from 
approximately $8 million at the beginning of calendar 2018 
to under $6.9 million at the start of Financial Year 2019. 
We also identified more than $1.2 million of annualised 
costs which are now being removed, merged some digital 
customer acquisition operations to improve their output, 
and neutralised the cost base of the Clipp business so it is no 
longer a drain on costs or management’s time. 

Whilst we still have revenue being generated from some 
legacy carrier billing databases, they are in rundown but 
will continue to make a positive yet minimal contribution to 
revenue and earnings. 

CEO's Report
N e i l  W i l e s

Although it has taken longer than first anticipated and there 
has been some highly publicised change in the external 
marketing industry, we are confident that Impelus’ Digital 
Performance Marketing (DPM) business can ramp up 
activity. I would also reiterate what I said last year, that the 
external telco related factors that impacted the carrier billing 
operations are simply not applicable to what is our core 
digital lead generation and customer acquisition operations 
today. Significant hard work has been done, whilst addressing 
the external challenges, to enable the platform to build the 
performance of these operations. 

Impelus’ revenue for the Financial Year (FY) 2018 was $25.51 
million and earnings before interest, tax earnings before 
interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) was 
$4.55 million. Whilst this was a sound revenue and earnings 
performance in light of the challenges faced, we are yet to 
see an improvement in margins until such time that the costs 
(reductions) that we have identified are fully realised, and 
we see a large increase in the number of lead generation 
and customer acquisition campaigns that generate greater 
margins enabled by our developing product set.   

Whilst we certainly experienced some headwinds in FY2018 
and much has been said about external factors and our 
restructuring efforts, we also took some positive growth 
steps and are developing a very solid foundation for this year 
and beyond. 

There is no doubt that the advertising, marketing and 
branding industry has undergone a seismic shift in recent 
years. The likes of Google, Facebook, Twitter and Instagram 
have changed the way companies communicate and how 
they attract and retain customers. The sector’s evolution 
has been incredible to watch, and whilst it has created a lot 
of challenges for traditional advertising models, it has also 
created huge opportunities. 

Today’s digital environment is evolving at a rapid pace and 
the sophistication of data analytics, consumer profiling and 
online content is truly remarkable. But there is nothing really 
new about sectors changing and evolving.

Throughout the year, some of Impelus’ communication 
material has quoted some encouraging and well qualified 
statistics with recent updates also encouraging, that 
generating traffic and leads is the top marketing challenge 
of 61% of businesses across 99 countries, and another being 
that 87% of them use outsourced lead generation capabilities. 

Whilst we know there is a large market opportunity for 
Impelus, and that we are advanced in establishing the best 
products to deliver better qualified leads and more customers 
for our clients, this has to translate into improved revenue 
and earnings and thus better returns for our shareholders. 
You can be absolutely assured that this is top of mind for 
the Company. 

Neil Wiles 
CEO & Managing Director 
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This starts with having a strong and recognised brand. 
As we transitioned out of DCB, it was important that we 
repositioned our brand and corporate identity for the future. 
Our distinct Impelus brand is starting to do this and is gaining 
some pleasing recognition in these early stages.

Strengthening our digital capability has been another 
development that is fundamental to our success. Having the 
best customer acquisition and lead generation technology 
assets is core to this. 

We launched new digital customer acquisition assets so our 
campaigns can deliver better qualified leads and improved 
return on investment for clients’ spend. 

Solvers were launched in March this year which are, 
essentially, premium digital and online lead generation assets 
that connect consumers with offers relevant to them, and in 
turn create much better qualified leads for Impelus’ clients. 
Early signs are most encouraging, with some campaigns 
generating significantly higher average revenue per marketing 
transaction. 

CEO's Report
co n t in u e d

From a commercial perspective, it means Impelus can earn 
higher revenue from digital leads generated as clients are 
willing to pay more for better qualified customer leads.

Our Digital Lead Generation and Customer Acquisition 
business is underpinned by 200+ campaigns that we run 
simultaneously every month across Australia, New Zealand 
and the United Kingdom. Whilst we focus on building on the 
large number of monthly campaigns and client numbers to 
de-risk our revenue base, we are more intent on developing 
and delivering campaigns with improved client Return On 
Investment (ROI) and thus better margins for Impelus. 

Solvers is just one component that is being developed to 
meet this objective in Australia with the technology to then 
be rolled out in the United Kingdom. 

Growth in the United Kingdom is another key objective for 
Impelus. We have an excellent business servicing a deep and 
credible client base that includes some of the world’s most 
recognised brands. Our United Kingdom leadership team 
is making solid inroads in this high growth market where 
we see considerable scope for growth, while also acting as 
a logical springboard into Europe where we are assessing 
opportunities. 

We have spent considerable time understanding what our 
clients want and listening to their needs. We are confident 
in matching this with outcomes, but there is still more work 
to do. 

Impelus is much better positioned to capitalise on some 
very exciting organic growth prospects without the threat 
of the DCB external factors. Our platform for growth is 
strengthening, we are aiming to improve our balance sheet, 
we have great technology and an impressive client base. All 
these factors place us in a strong position. 

I would like to join the Chairman in thanking the shareholders 
for their support this year and I can assure you, we are 
mindful of what we have to deliver. I would also like to thank 
our dedicated and passionate Impelus team for their hard 
work and commitment. 
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Directors’ Report 
 
The directors of Impelus Limited present their report together with the financial statements of the Group, 
being the Company and its controlled entities, for the year ended 30 June 2018. 
 
The names and particulars of the directors of the Company during or since the end of the financial year 
unless otherwise stated are: 
 
Directors 

Name Particulars 
IAN ELLIOT 
Independent chairman  
Non-executive director 
Appointed 29 November 
2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Interest in shares & options  
 
 
Special responsibilities 
 
 
Directorships held in other 
listed entities during the 
three years prior to the 
current year 

Mr. Elliot has over 40 years’ experience in the advertising, marketing, 
branding and diversified communication sector. He was both Chairman 
and CEO of George Patterson Bates, which was Australia’s leading 
advertising agency for all of the thirty years of his career, rising from the 
mail room to CEO. Ian oversaw the expansion through M&A activity of the 
ad agency into a diversified services group and in his final four years as 
CEO, he added more than $250 million worth of new account wins. He 
also chaired Zenith Media from 2002-2006, during which Zenith Media 
was Australia’s largest media buying company. Ian is recognised as the 
architect behind the successful Optus ‘Yes’ campaign and many other 
high-profile consumer advertising and major events campaigns.  
 
From 2003 to 2007, Ian was both Chairman and Executive Chairman of 
ASX-listed printing group Promentum Limited. During this time 
Promentum saw a substantial increase in revenue and earnings and 
successfully sold the business to private equity at approximately 5 times 
the 2003 share price.  
  
For the past 14 years, Ian has acted as professional Non-Executive 
Director for a number of ASX-listed companies including Salmat Limited 
(2005-2016), Hills Industries (2003-2016) and McMillan Shakespeare 
Limited (current). He was also an Australian Rugby League Commissioner 
(2012-2016), Director of the National Australia Day Council (2003-2012) 
and is the current Chairman of the Dry July Foundation.    
 
Nil. 
 
 
Ian Elliot is a member of the audit committee, and the nomination, and 
remuneration committee. 
 
McMillan Shakespeare Ltd (ASX: MMS), Salmat Ltd (ASX: SLM) resigned 
31/12/16, Hills Ltd (ASX: HIL) resigned 04/11/16, Dry July Foundation. 
 
 

Drew Kelton 
Non-executive director since 
1 July 2010 and Independent 
chairman from 06 
November 2014 to 29 
November 2017 
Resigned as a Non-executive 
Director 29 June 2018 
 
  
 

Mr. Kelton joined the board of Impelus on 1 July 2010. He is currently 
engaged as a professional chairman and director on ASX listed 
companies in the Australian market.  
 
He was recently employed as vice-president and managing director Asia 
Pacific for DocuSign Inc. the world’s leading provider of Digital 
Transaction Management (DTM) solutions. Formally he was the vice-
president of T-Mobile in the United States and prior to that he was 
President Enterprise Services at Bharti Airtel, India’s largest mobile phone 
operator and one of Asia’s leading integrated telecom service providers 
and a member of Bharti’s management board. 
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Interest in shares & options  
 
Special responsibilities 
 
 
Directorships held in other 
listed entities during the 
three years prior to the 
current year 
 

Prior to joining Bharti Airtel, Mr. Kelton spent eight years as the managing 
director of Telstra Corporation’s international business unit where he was 
responsible for driving business growth in Telstra’s offshore operations 
and establishing a multinational customer division to oversee Telstra’s 
biggest global customers. 
 
Mr. Kelton has over 30 years’ experience in telecommunications and IT 
solutions and has worked in Europe, Australia, Asia and the US. He holds 
a Bachelor of Science in Electrical and Electronic Engineering (Hons) from 
Glasgow’s Paisley College of Technology. In addition, he is a Chartered 
Engineer and Member of the Institution of Engineering and Technology. 
 
300,000 ordinary shares and nil options. 
 
Mr. Kelton was a member of the audit committee and the nomination 
and remuneration committee. 
 
Firstwave Cloud Technology (ASX: FCT), Megaport Limited (ASX: MP1) 
and Enice Limited (ASX: ENC) now delisted. 

David Andrew Haines 
Independent  
Non-executive director 
 
 
 
 
Interest in shares & options 
 
Special responsibilities 
 
 
Directorships held in other 
listed entities during the 
three years prior to the 
current year 

A director of the Company since May 2001. Mr. Haines holds a Bachelor 
of Education degree and was Secretary to the Standing Committee of 
Commonwealth, State and Territory Ministers with Censorship 
Responsibilities (1988 to 1994), Deputy Chief Censor, Australian Film 
Censorship Board (1986 to 1994) and Member of the Australian Film 
Censorship Board (1981-1994). 
 
415,000 ordinary shares and nil options. 
 
Mr. Haines is chair of the audit committee and a member of the 
nomination and remuneration committee.  
 
Nil. 
 
 

Neil Wiles 
CEO & MD  
Executive director 
appointed 18 July 2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Wiles was appointed executive director of the Company on 18 July 
2017. 
Mr. Wiles was appointed CEO and managing director of the Company on 
8 August 2017. 
 
Prior to his appointment as CEO and managing director Mr. Wiles had 
been managing director of the Company since 2005.  
 
For more than 27 years, Mr. Wiles has led, developed and grown 
businesses as managing director and CEO in the communications, digital, 
information technology and marketing sectors.  
 
Mr. Wiles is an awarded and accredited digital media innovator and 
industry expert having held executive leadership roles with key industry 
and regulatory bodies, and as an advisor to media on entertainment and 
technology convergence. He was Chairman of the committee for Pre-
assessment Guidelines for the Classification of Mobile Content and sat 
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Interest in shares & options  
 
Special responsibilities 
 
Directorships held in other 
listed entities during the 
three years prior to the 
current year 

on the Australian Direct Marketing Association (ADMA) Mobile Marketing 
Council. 
 
Mr. Wiles acknowledgments include having been listed by B&T Digital as 
one of the 40 Biggest Players of Australia's Digital Age and having been 
named “Mobile Marketer of the Year” by ADMA the nation's peak body 
for information-based marketing with more than 500-member 
organisations.  
 
20,283,000 ordinary shares. 
 
Nil. 
 
Nil. 

Christopher Thorpe 
CEO from May 2001 to 8 
August 2017 
Resigned as Executive 
director on 17 November 
2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Interest in shares & options  
 
Special responsibilities 
 
Directorships held in other 
listed entities during the 
three years prior to the 
current year  

Mr. Thorpe was CEO of the Company from May 2001 up until 8 August 
2017.  
 
Mr. Thorpe provides his expertise in the global mobile and 
telecommunications industry, with over 18 years’ experience gained in 
the United States, Europe and Australia. The combination of this 
experience with a financial background provides him with a strong 
understanding of the industry, its issues and trends, enabling the ability 
to commercialise and deploy successful business strategies. 
 
Mr. Thorpe has been at the forefront of the mobile entertainment and 
telecommunications industry leading with a number of key innovations. 
His work has been acknowledged through the receipt of numerous 
business awards for these milestone achievements and contributions to 
the telecommunications industry. 
 
Mr. Thorpe provides leadership, insight, expertise, understanding along 
with a global network of leading industry associates and contacts. His 
vision and drive provide the company with opportunities to capitalise on 
its position as Australia’s leading mobile services provider. 
 
22,176,639 ordinary shares and 3,000,000 options. 
 
Nil. 
 
Nil. 

 
Company Secretary 

Name Particulars 
Justin Clyne 
Company secretary  
(appointed 1 August 2014) 
 
 
 
 

Mr. Clyne was admitted as a Solicitor of the Supreme Court of New South 
Wales and High Court of Australia in 1996 before gaining admission as a 
barrister in 1998. He had 15 years of experience in the legal profession 
acting for a number of the country's largest corporations, initially in the 
areas of corporate and commercial law before dedicating himself full-
time to the provision of corporate advisory and company secretarial 
services. 
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Interest in shares & options 

Mr. Clyne is a director and/or secretary of a number of public listed and 
unlisted companies. He has significant experience and knowledge in 
international law, the Corporations Act, the ASX Listing Rules and 
corporate regulatory requirements generally. Justin holds a Master of 
Laws in International Law from the University of New South Wales is a 
qualified Chartered Company Secretary and a Member of the Australian 
Institute of Company Directors 
 
Nil. 

 
Principal Activities 
 
Impelus Limited posted an EBITDA of $4.55 million and a NPAT of $(29.01) million for the year results.   
 
The principal activities of the consolidated entity are technology led Digital Customer Acquisition utilising 
Digital Performance Marketing (DPM). As a DPM customer acquisition company the consolidated entity, 
through its DPM platforms and infrastructure, enables businesses to generate customers at scale via digital 
channels and devices. For more information please see www.impelus.com. 

The consolidated entity also has non-core activities that are in the process of divestment or run-off (Clipp 
and Direct Carrier Billing (DCB)). 

On 13 December 2017 the Company announced a change of its name from “Mobile Embrace Limited” to 
“Impelus Limited” which was approved by the Company’s shareholders at the Annual General Meeting held 
on 29 November 2017. 

In the 2nd Half of FY 2018, the operations of Clipp were merged with the DPM business. 
There were no other significant changes in the nature of the consolidated Group’s principal activities during 
the period. 

Review of Operations 
 
Impelus Limited posted a full-year profit after tax of $(29.01) million compared to the prior year profit after 
tax of $1.6 million. 
 
Refer Market Updates ASX release 8 August 2017, 28 February 2018, 19 March 2018, 11 April 2018 and 5 
July 2018, and the Directors Report Review of Operations in the full year financial report for commentary 
on the results for the period and explanations to understand the Group’s revenue and profit / (loss) from 
ordinary activities.  
 

($) million FY 2017 FY 2018 Variance 
Revenue $52.50 $25.51 ($26.99) 
Gross Profit $22.60 $17.14 ($5.46) 
Employment costs $11.00 $8.33 ($2.67) 
EBITDA $5.40 $4.55 ($0.85) 
Depreciation and 
amortisation 

$4.20 $4.18 ($0.02) 

Impairment of intangible 
assets 

$0.10 $29.57 $29.47 

Net Profit / (Loss) After Tax $1.60 ($29.01) ($30.61) 
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Normalised EBITDA 
 
The table below adds back the one-off restructuring costs expensed during the financial year 2018.   
 

($) million FY 2017 FY 2018 
EBITDA $5.40 $4.55 
Add back Re-structing costs * - $1.38 
Normalised EBITDA - $5.93 

*Excluding Clipp 
 
Impelus Limited (ASX:IMS) in FY 2018 operated as a technology led Digital Customer Acquisition company 
utilising its Digital Performance Marketing (DPM) infrastructure.  
 
We help companies to cost efficiently find customers through digital channels, at scale, globally.  
For more information please see: www.impelus.com. 
 
Proprietary Technology 
 
Impelus has grown a proprietary technology stack that has been built through a combination of internal 
development, strategic acquisitions, focused innovation and organic investment. Overall this technology 
stack is a significant component of the Company’s competitive strength and enablement for it to scale and 
optimise revenue and EBITDA for current and future operations. 
 
Personnel Change 
 
With the shift of focus to performance marketing Co-founder and Managing Director Neil Wiles was 
appointed as an Executive Director on 18 July 2017 with Co-founder and former CEO Chris Thorpe stepping 
down as a director effective 17 November 2017 but he remains a large shareholder (refer ASX 
announcement 17 November 2017). 
 
Ian Elliot was appointed as Non -Executive Chairman on 29 November 2017 (refer ASX announcement 21 
November 2017).   
 
Ian Elliot has over 40 years’ experience in the advertising, marketing, branding and diversified 
communication sector. He was both Chairman and CEO of George Patterson Bates, Australia’s leading 
advertising agency for the thirty years of his career, rising from the mail room to CEO. Ian oversaw the 
expansion through M&A activity of the ad agency into a diversified services group and in his final four years 
as CEO he added more than $250 million worth of new account wins. He also chaired Zenith Media from 
2002-2006, during which Zenith Media was Australia’s largest media buying company. Ian is recognised as 
the architect behind the successful Optus ‘Yes’ campaign and many other high-profile consumer advertising 
and major events campaigns. From 2003 to 2007, Ian was both Chairman and Executive Chairman of ASX-
listed printing group Promentum Limited. During this time Promentum saw a substantial increase in 
revenue and earnings and was successfully sold to private equity at approximately 5 times the 2003 share 
price.  For the past 14 years, Ian has acted as a professional Non-Executive Director for a number of ASX-
listed companies including Salmat Limited (2005-2016), Hills Industries (2003-2016) and McMillan 
Shakespeare Limited (current). He was also an Australian Rugby League Commissioner (2012-2016), 
Director of the National Australia Day Council (2003-2012) and is the current Chairman of the Dry July 
Foundation.    
 
Drew Kelton resigned as a Non-executive Director on 29 June 2018 to take a full-time role. Drew Kelton 
served as a Director since 2010 and as Chairman between November 2014 and November 2017 (refer ASX 
announcement 29 June 2018). 
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Cash Flow 
 
The Company’s Cash at Bank was $3,334,276 at 30 June 2018, compared to $9,071,741 at 30 June 2017. 
Across the course of the financial year ending 2018 the Company was forced due to external factors beyond 
its control to exit from its operations in Direct Carrier Billing. 
 

Period 30 June 2017 31 December 2017 30 June 2018 
Cash at Bank $9,071,741 $3,278,550 $3,334,276 

 
As a result, the Company underwent restructuring on 2 occasions through the financial year which saw a 
cumulative cash outlay of $1.9 million across the Financial Year 2018; which has impacted the operational 
cash flow for FY 2018. Further at balance date overdue telco receivables were $ 313,322.  The Company also 
retired $1,343,024 in bank debt and paid earnout payments of $5,666,901 during the Financial Year 2018.  
 
The Table below shows the normalised operational cash flow for the Financial Year 2018 after adjusting 
for the costs of restructuring mentioned above.  
 
Normalised pre-tax operational cash flows: 
 

 Consolidated Group 
 2018 2017 
 $ $ 
NORMALISED PRE TAX CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING 
ACTIVITIES 

  

Receipts from customers 25,211,591 61,954,385 
Payments to suppliers and employees (24,346,249) (58,479,452) 
Interest Received 11,389 15,146 
Interest Paid (268,395) (214,911) 
Normalised Pre-Tax Net cash provided by operating activities 608,336 3,275,168 

 
Capital Expenditure 
 
Capital expenditure for the financial year ending 2018 was $768,732 a component of that expenditure was 
wages, this expenditure was capitalised: FY 2018 $550,770 (FY 2017 $1,273,790). This expenditure was 
primarily on the development of performance marketing digital assets in the United Kingdom. 
 
Acquisition 
 
The Company acquired C2B Solutions Pty Limited (C2B) a performance marketing company, for an overall 
consideration of $6.5 million. The purchase price consisted of an upfront consideration of $2.5 million 
followed by a two-year performance-based earn-out of $2 million in 12 months On Target Earnings (OTE), 
and $2 million in a further 12 months OTE (refer ASX announcement 14 August 2017). For developments 
with respect to the C2B Acquisition please see ‘After Balance Date Events’ below. 

 
Divestment of Non-core Asset 
 

Clipp 
 
The Board has determined that Clipp is non-core and does not fit with the future direction and focus of IMS. 
Clipp is presently in the process of being divested. In the 2nd Half of FY 2018, the operations of Clipp were 
merged with the Digital Performance Marketing business. The Company is on track to have completed the 
divestment of Clipp by 15 September 2018.   
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DCB Update 
 
The Board continues the Company’s progressive exit from carrier billing with the remaining Australian telco 
agreements ended on 23 August 2018 and therefore the remaining Australian DCB operations and 
associated costs have been wound down profitably. The remaining historical international DCB databases 
that are in run-off will continue to be supported whilst they are cashflow positive with some residual 
revenue and earnings (refer ASX announcement 24 July 2018). 
 
The Company has impaired the remaining net book value of $2,221,675 on the DCB software system.  
 
DCB still operates from Australia only and provides digital content in the following territories: UK, 
Singapore and Switzerland. Australian revenues from DCB will cease around end of October 2018. 
 
  DCB only: 

DCB Outlook FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021  
Revenue $1,209,077 $1,011,651 $801,651  
Gross Profit $967,262 771,651 581,523  
Expenses ($635,840) ($440,053) ($240,053)  
EBITDA $331,422 $331,598 $341,470  

 
The above figures are projections and can be subject to change. 
 
Financial Position 
 
The net assets of the consolidated Group have decreased by $27.47m from 30 June 2017, to $14.51m in FY 
2018. This was due to the impairment of goodwill, and software relating to the Direct Carrier Billing 
operations in Australia being progressively wound down due to external factors beyond the control of the 
Company.  
 
Capital raised: The Company completed its capital raising program announced to the ASX on 6 June 2018. 
Under the capital raising a total of $2,278,500 was raised between the placement and Share Purchase Plan 
(SPP) (refer ASX announcement 20 July 2018). Ninety-eight million fully paid ordinary shares were issued at 
$0.02 per share. The funds raised to be used for digital asset deployment, Australian marketing, and UK 
market expansion as the Company aims to scale up its Digital Customer Acquisition business, working 
capital purposes and for growth opportunities.   
 
The directors believe the Group is in a stable financial position to expand and grow its current operations 
being able to fund future operations through share issues, debt instruments, control of costs and the 
continued commercialisation of its business-to-business activities. 
 
Significant Changes in State of Affairs 
 
During the financial year there were no significant changes in the state of affairs of the consolidated entity 
other than that referred to in the financial statements or notes thereto. 
 
Resolution of Litigation 
 
The Company settled the litigation with GBD Ventures Pty Limited (refer ASX announcement 19 July 2017).  
 
After Balance Date Events 
 
The Company has commenced proceedings in the Federal Court of Australia against the vendors (and 
associated parties) of C2B Solutions Pty Limited for various matters relating to the acquisition of C2B. 
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Other than the above, there have been no events that have occurred since the reporting date which would 
materially impact on the financial position of the Company and its controlled entities. 
 
Future Developments, Prospects and Business Strategies 

The Company has shifted its focus to its development as a technology-led Digital Customer Acquisition 
company utilising its Digital Performance Marketing (DPM) infrastructure. The Company is building out 
market-leading platforms and infrastructure globally. IMS has created a Digital Performance Marketing 
infrastructure from its offices in Australia, and the UK so that its clients can utilise its proprietary and 
integrated partner technology, tools and data assets to seamlessly target and connect consumers to 
products they value, enabling them to generate high quality customer acquisitions at scale, on online and 
mobile devices. 

Throughout FY2018 the Company’s focus has been: 

• Developing the growth platform of its DPM business with the roll-out of more digital Lead 
Generation/Customer Acquisition tools that deliver better qualified customer leads to clients cost 
effectively;  

• The scale down of non-core activities including Clipp and Direct Carrier Billing (DCB) so that their costs 
are substantially reduced and with DCB still delivering positive cash generation in the run-off phase; 
and;  

• Significantly reducing the Company’s overall cost base and lowering debt levels substantially.  

All these objectives have been met. This is providing a stronger platform to drive sustainable returns for 
shareholders. With development of the Digital Customer Acquisition business the groups EBITDA margin 
can benefit from the focus on Digital Performance Marketing, enabling stronger earnings off a lower 
revenue base. 
 
The Company continues the development of the growth platform for its DPM operations with a focus on 
building its capability in higher value lead generation where there is strong demand. Several operational 
initiatives are in development to reinforce and build on this strategy, and they are well advanced (refer ASX 
announcement IMS Investor Presentation April 2018, 11 April 2018). 

Impelus has identified a number of organic growth opportunities in its UK operations and is developing new 
digital assets specifically for that market. The UK business is also being developed to act as a springboard 
into Europe, anticipated in FY2019. Updates on specific growth initiatives will be reported as they develop, 
and the Company sees considerable opportunity here.  

Outlook 
 
Impelus is now well advanced in establishing itself with a platform to grow as a digital-led customer 
acquisition business underpinned by the very best technology platforms.  

In a rapidly changing marketing landscape, leading companies and brands are demanding better outcomes 
from their promotional partners, including delivery of more qualified customer leads, improved customer 
lifetime value, and greater cost effectiveness. Impelus’ platforms are now doing this. In FY2019 the Company 
will focus on the further development and on building scale of its higher value lead generation capability. 

The Company will increase its investment in the growth and development of the new DPM assets 
throughout FY2019, given they are expected to generate higher average revenue per transaction, and 
stronger global demand is anticipated, and will lessen activity on lower value, lower average revenue per 
transaction products where there is stronger demand in the UK market than in the Australian market. 

The UK operations are trading well, and new client relationships are being established with growth 
opportunities identified in other European markets. IMS sees considerable scope for growth in the UK 
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operations, and the Company is well advanced with plans to establish a greater presence there to deliver 
organic revenue and earnings growth. Updates to the market will be provided in due course.   

Environmental Issues 
 
The consolidated entity's operations are not affected by any significant environmental regulation under the 
law of the Commonwealth or the State. To the extent that any environmental regulations may have an 
incidental impact on the consolidated Group's operations, the directors of the Company and its controlled 
entities are not aware of any breach by the Company and its controlled entities of those regulations. 
 
Dividends 
 
There have been no dividends paid or declared since the beginning of the financial year, and the directors 
do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of the financial year ended 30 June 2018. 
 
Share Based Payments 
There have been no share-based payments in the financial year ending 30 June 2018. 
 
Remuneration Report 
 
The Remuneration Report forms part of the Directors' Report and outlines the remuneration arrangements 
for executives and employees of Impelus Limited, including key management personnel in accordance with 
relevant accounting standards and Section 300A of the Corporations Act. 
 
The remuneration policy of Impelus Limited has been designed to align key management personnel 
objectives with shareholder and business objectives by providing a fixed remuneration component and 
offering short term incentives and long-term incentives based on key performance areas affecting the 
consolidated Group’s financial results. The Board of Impelus Limited believes the remuneration policy to be 
appropriate and effective in its ability to attract and retain the best key management personnel to run and 
manage the consolidated Group, as well as create goal congruence between directors, executives and 
shareholders. 
 
Remuneration of directors and executives is reviewed by the Remuneration Committee in accordance with 
its Charter.  The Remuneration Committee makes recommendations to the board on the following: 
 

• Executive remuneration and incentive policies; 
• Ensuring policy allows the Company to recruit and retain suitably qualified executives; 
• Remuneration framework for directors; 
• Aligning the interests of key employees to the long-term interests of shareholders; and 
• Demonstrate a clear relationship between key executive performance and remuneration. 

 
The performance of key management personnel is measured against criteria agreed annually with each 
executive and is based predominantly on the forecast growth of the consolidated Group’s revenue, profits, 
shareholders’ value as well as personal goals. All bonuses and incentives must be linked to predetermined 
performance criteria. The Board may, however, exercise its discretion in relation to approving incentives, 
bonuses and options, and can recommend changes to the committee’s recommendations. Any changes 
must be justified by reference to measurable performance criteria. The policy is designed to attract the 
highest calibre of executives and reward them for performance results leading to long-term growth in 
shareholder wealth. 
 
The Board’s policy is to remunerate non-executive directors at market rates for time, commitment and 
responsibilities. The remuneration committee determines payments to the non-executive directors and 
reviews their remuneration annually, based on market practice, duties and accountability. Independent 
external advice is sought when required. The maximum aggregate amount of fees that can be paid to non-
executive directors is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting. 
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Relationship between Remuneration Policy and Company Performance 
 
The remuneration policy has been tailored to increase goal congruence between shareholders, directors 
and executives. Two methods have been applied to achieve this aim, the first being a performance-based 
STI bonus based on key performance indicators, and the second being the LTI issue of options to the 
majority of key management personnel to encourage the alignment of personal and shareholder interests. 
The Company believes this policy is effective in positioning itself for future growth. 
 
The following table shows the revenue and earnings for the last five years for the listed entity, as well as the 
share prices at the end of the respective financial years. 
 

 30 June 
2014 

30 June 
2015 

30 June 
2016 

30 June 
2017 

30 June 
2018 

Revenue $ 19,273,392 33,015,922 60,563,131 52,555,202 25,510,096 
EBITDA $ 3,149,716 5,097,767 9,495,954 5,394,573 4,551,844 
Net profit / (loss) after 
tax 

2,494,423 3,045,554 4,916,116 1,595,677 (29,010,946) 

Share price (cents) 20.0 24.5 30.5 5.05 1.7 
 
The Company’s performance over the last five years is set out in the table above. The Company has been 
working through a substantial restructure and shift in focus due to external factors beyond its control. It 
has made significant progress in resolving a number of operational challenges and in developing its position 
to take advantage of the growing market opportunity of enabling the acquisition of customers at scale on 
online and mobile devices through Digital Performance Marketing (DPM). In the opinion of the board, this 
can be attributed, in part, to the previously described remuneration policy. The Group’s operations are 
building a stronger platform for growth. 
 
Achieving long term sustainable profitable growth provides the platform to further increase shareholder 
wealth in the future. 
 
Table of Employment Details of Members of Key Management Personnel 
 
With the shift of focus to performance marketing Co-founder and Managing Director Neil Wiles was 
appointed as an Executive Director on 18 July 2017 with Co-founder and former CEO Chris Thorpe stepping 
down as a director effective 17 November 2017 but he remains a large shareholder (refer ASX 
announcement 17 November 2017). 
 
No STI bonuses were awarded to key management personnel for FY 2018 despite the high performance of 
the key executives in guiding the Company through a major and complex restructuring process and shift in 
focus as, due to the impacts from external factors on the carrier billing operations, revenue and EBITDA for 
FY 2018 was lower than FY 2017.  
 
No Options were issued during FY 2018 to key management personnel or staff. 
 
Subject to receiving shareholder approval at the Company’s FY 2018 Annual General Meeting to be held in 
2018 following the completion of the financial year, the Board has agreed to issue to Ian Elliot, or his 
nominee, a total of 3,000,000 unlisted options to acquire ordinary shares in the Company. The options will 
vest in 3 equal tranches on the first, second and third anniversaries of his appointment. All options will be 
exercisable at a 50% premium to the five-day VWAP prior to the date of this announcement and have a 3-
year expiry period from the date of vesting. 
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Table of Employment Details of Members of Key Management Personnel 
(continued) 
 
No STI bonuses were awarded to key management personnel for FY 2018. 
 

Name Neil Wiles Simon Allison 
Position held  
30 June 2017 
 
18 July 2017 
 

 
Managing Director. 
 
Appointed Executive Director 
 

 
Chief Finance Officer. 

Contract 
details 

Four years and 7 months 
from the 4 November 2014. 
May be extended by mutual 
agreement. 

Appointment continued until 
date the employment is 
terminated pursuant to the 
terms of the agreement. 

Notice period 12 months. 1 month. 

Total base 
salary 

$390,000 $260,000 

Short term 
incentive 

A discretional amount 
capped at 60% of the 
package and solely based on 
the achievement of 
performance criteria set 
annually by the Board. Refer 
to Remuneration Report for 
KPI’s. 

A discretional amount capped 
at 60% of the package and 
solely based on the 
achievement of performance 
criteria set annually by the 
Board. Refer to Remuneration 
Report for KPI’s. 

Other 
benefits 

30 days’ annual leave. 
Corporate parking. Life 
insurance policy paid for by 
IMS. 

20 days’ annual leave. 
Corporate parking. 

Termination 
by company 

12 months’ notice or 
payment in lieu. 

3 months’ notice or payment 
in lieu. 

Restraint 12 months’ post termination. 6 months’ post termination. 
Interest in 
shares as at 
30 June 2018 

20,283,000 1,000,000 

Long term  
incentive / 
options 
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Director and Executive Remuneration 
 
The following table of benefits and payments detail, in respect to the financial year, the components of 
remuneration for each member of the key management personnel of the consolidated Group and, to the 
extent different, the five group executives and five company executives receiving the highest remuneration: 
 

2018 

Short-term Benefits 
Post- 

employment 
Benefits 

  Equity-settle Total 

Termination 
Payments 

Share-based 
Payments 

$ 

Salary & 
Fees & 
Leave 

Bonuses Non- 
Monetary 

Super- 
annuation   Shares Options 

  

$ $ $ $   $ $   

Non-Executive 
                

Directors 

Drew Kelton 71,530 - - 6,795 - - - 78,325 

David Haines 60,000 - - 5,700 - - - 65,700 

Ian Elliot 40,482 - - 3,846 - - - 44,327 

Chris Thorpe       53,449  - - 3,341 267,364 - - 324,154 

                  

Executives                 

                  

Neil Wiles 419,679** - 40,283 20,049   - - 480,011 

Simon Allison 299,752** - - 20,049   - - 319,801 

  944,892 0 40,283 59,780 267,364 0 0 1,312,318 

* No STI bonuses were awarded for FY 2018.  
** Base salary includes back pay of $53,832 for Neil Wiles and $39,951 for Simon Allison. 
 
 

2017 Short-term Benefits Post- 
employment 

Benefits 

Equity-settle 
Share-based 

Payments 

Total 
$ 

Salary & 
Fees & 
Leave 

$ 

Bonuses 
$ 

(Owed 
from  

FY 2015) 

Non- 
monetary 

$ 

Super- 
annuation 

$ 

Shares 
$ 

Options 
$ 

Non-Executive 
Directors 

       

Drew Kelton 87,672 - - 8,328 - - 96,000 
David Haines 60,000 - - 5,600 - - 65,600 
Gavin Whyte 16,665 - - - - - 16,665 
        
Executives        
Chris Thorpe 353,584 *306,000 40,659 19,615 - - 719,858 
Neil Wiles 320,693 *306,000 43,165 19,615 - - 689,473 
Simon Allison 200,000 *196,200 - 19,615 - - 415,815 
 1,038,614 808,200 83,824 72,773 - - 2,003,411 

* STI Bonus was for FY 2015. No STI bonuses were awarded for FY 2017. 
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Short Term Incentive Plan – Cash Bonuses 
 
The Company has in place short term incentive plans. Key management are entitled to a short-term cash 
incentive based on performance criteria as determined by and at the discretion of the board. The metrics 
for the short-term incentive plans relate to EBITDA performance and personal goals. 
 
The performance criteria must be met within the financial year for the bonus entitlement to be realised.  
 
For FY 2018 & FY 2019 the STI weighting is 80% EBITDA and 20% personal goals. 
STI target FY 2018 was to achieve a minimum growth rate of 30% of EBITDA against the FY 2017 result.  
 
Details of Base Incentive Entitlements are detailed as follows: 
 

Executive / Position Incentive Base 
  
Neil Wiles / MD & CEO  $210,000 
Simon Allison / CFO  $137,000 
 

Incentive Payment Determination 
 
The short-term incentive plan for FY 2018 provides for the board to apply at its discretion an adjusted 
multiplier to the incentive base of each incentive plan participant, based on overall performance, of between 
0 and 1.5. 
 
For FY 2018 the performance of the key executives in delivering the Company’s strategy was high in what 
proved to be a very challenging year. IMS has previously advised that its carrier billing operations were 
being impacted by external factors, and that in order to better manage future earnings risk a prudent course 
of action was to progressively exit the carrier billing operations. This has proven to be the right approach 
given these external factors are unchanged.  
 
The board commends the key executives for their management of, and tactical response to the impacts by 
external factors on the carrier billing operations, and the subsequent shift of focus to building greater scale 
into the performance marketing division where earnings are better insulated. The executives have 
performed highly as they have been guiding the Company through a major and complex restructuring 
process and shift in focus to a Digital Customer Acquisition company. 
 
Bonuses for FY 2018 
 
No STI bonuses were awarded for FY 2018 despite the high performance of the key executives as, due to 
the impacts from external factors on the carrier billing operations, revenue and EBITDA for FY 2018 was 
lower than FY 2017.  
 
Share Options 
 
Long term incentive plan – share options. 
 
There were no options issued to staff during financial year ending 2018. 
 
Share options granted to executives during the financial year. 
 
Subject to receiving shareholder approval at the Company’s FY 2018 Annual General Meeting to be held in 
2018 following the completion of the financial year, the Board has agreed to issue to Ian Elliot, or his 
nominee, a total of 3,000,000 unlisted options to acquire ordinary shares in the Company. The options will 
vest in 3 equal tranches on the first, second and third anniversaries of his appointment. All options will be 
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exercisable at a 50% premium to the five-day VWAP prior to the date of this announcement and have a 3-
year expiry period from the date of vesting (refer ASX announcement 21 November 2017). 
 
Share options granted to other parties during the financial year. 
 
Two million (2,000,000) options exercisable at a 50% premium to the 5-trading day VWAP prior to the 
Company undertaking the capital raise and expiring 2 years from the date of issue were issued for 
marketing services provided in relation to the Placement (refer ASX announcement 6 June 2018).   
 
Share Options on Issue at Year End 
Details of un-issued shares under option at the date of this report are: 
 

Grant Date Date of Expiry Exercise Price (cents) Number Under Option 
 4 Dec-15 
 4-Dec-15 

 26 Dec-18 
 31-Dec-18 

 39.00 
 39.00 

1000,000 
2,000,000 

6-Jun-18 6-Jun-20 3.70 2,000,000 
   5,000,000 

 
Option holders do not have any rights to participate in any issues of shares or other interests in the 
Company or any other entity. There have been no unissued shares or interests in options of any 
controlled entity within the Group during or since the end of the reporting period. For details of options 
issued to directors and executives as remuneration, refer to the remuneration report. No person entitled 
to exercise the option had or has any right by virtue of the option to participate in any share issue of any 
other body corporate.  
 
Meetings of Directors 
 
During the financial year, 10 meetings of directors (plus committees of directors) were held. Attendances 
by each director during the year were as follows: 
 

Directors Directors’ Meetings Audit Committee Nominations & 
Remuneration 

Committee 
 Held Attended Held Attended Held Attended 

Ian Elliot 5 5 2 2 - - 
David Haines 10 8 2 2 1 1 
Chris Thorpe 5 5 2 1 1 1 
Neil Wiles  9 9 2 2 1 1 
Drew Kelton 8 8 - 2 - - 

 
Proceedings on Behalf of Company 
 
The Company has commenced proceedings in the Federal Court of Australia against the vendors (and 
associated parties) of C2B Solutions Pty Limited for various matters relating to the acquisition of C2B. 
 
Other than the above mentioned there are no other proceedings on behalf of the Company at reporting 
date. 
 
Indemnification of Officers and Auditors 
 
During the financial year, the Company paid a premium in respect of a contract insuring the directors of the 
Company (as named in this report), the company secretary and all executive officers of the Company against 
a liability incurred as a director, secretary or executive officer to the extent permitted by the Corporations 
Act 2001. The contract of insurance prohibits disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the 
premium. 
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The Company has not otherwise, during or since the end of the financial year, except to the extent permitted 
by law, indemnified or agreed to indemnify an officer or auditor of the Company or of any related body 
corporate of the Company against a liability incurred as such an officer or auditor. 
 
Non-Audit Services 
The Board of Directors is satisfied that the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the 
Corporations Act has been met. No non-audit services were performed during the financial year to 30 June 
2018. 
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration 
 
The lead auditor’s independence declaration for the year ended 30 June 2018 has been received and can 
be found on page 24 of this Report. 
 
This report of directors, incorporating the Remuneration Report, is signed in accordance with a resolution 
of the Board of Directors. 
 

 
Neil Wiles 
Managing Director & CEO 
31st August 2018 
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for 
the Year Ended 30 June 2018 
 

  Consolidated Group 
 Notes 2018 2017 
  $ $ 
Continuing Operations    
Revenue from Continuing Operations rendered 3 25,510,096 52,555,202 
Cost of sales  (8,365,883) (18,012,225) 
  17,144,213 34,542,977 
    
Interest income 3 11,389 15,146 
Service providers and commissions  (857,957) (3,547,549) 
Administration expenses  (225,956) (652,665) 
Advertising and marketing expenses  (464,867) (9,945,432) 
Finance costs  (325,432) (214,911) 
Depreciation and amortisation expense  (4,180,167) (4,235,468) 
Impairment of intangible assets 16 (2,221,675) (138,439) 
Impairment of Investment – Clipp  (4,781,157)  
Impairment of Goodwill 15 (21,746,453) - 
Impairment for Debtors 10 (822,000) - 
Employee benefits expense 4 (8,328,897) (11,055,090) 
Legal expenses 4 (265,375) (259,558) 
Occupancy expenses  (529,526) (653,497) 
Operational expenses  (1,502,489) (2,273,469) 
Other expenses from ordinary activities  (417,302) (761,144) 
(loss) / Profit before income tax  (29,513,651) 820,901 
Income tax (expense) / benefit 5 788,525 774,776 
    
Net (loss) / profit for the year  (28,725,126) 1,595,677 
Other comprehensive income  

(285,820) 
 

Exchange differences on translating foreign 
operations 

 (224,797) 

Income tax relating to other comprehensive income  (285,820) (224,797) 
    
Other comprehensive (Loss)/income for the year 
net of tax 

 
 

 

Total comprehensive (Loss)/income for the year  (29,010,946) 1,370,880 
    
Basic earnings per share (cents per share) 8 (0.05) 0.36 
Diluted earnings per share (cents per share) 8 (0.05) 0.35 

 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2018 
 

  Consolidated Group 
 Notes 2018 2017 
  $ $ 
ASSETS    
CURRENT ASSETS    

Cash and cash equivalents 9 3,334,276 9,071,741 
Trade and other receivables 10 3,460,156 9,402,899 
Other assets 11 3,043,733 2,903,301 
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  9,838,165 21,377,941 
    
NON-CURRENT ASSETS    
Trade and other receivables 10 252,992 249,804 
Plant and equipment 17 822,649 1,281,407 
Deferred tax assets 20 572,219 1,943,829 
Intangible assets 16 10,129,446 15,418,567 
Goodwill 15 2,500,000 20,087,209 
Other non-current assets 11 6,300 6,300 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS  14,283,606 38,987,116 
TOTAL ASSETS  24,121,771 60,365,057 
    
LIABILITIES    
CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Trade and other payables 18 1,847,589 3,555,083 
Deferred consideration  - 4,626,606 
Borrowings 19 2,727,490 314,936 
Deferred tax liabilities 20 - 1,735,476 
Income tax payable (UK)  80,131 656,489 
Short-term provisions 21 753,037 1,481,812 
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES  5,408,247 12,370,402 
    
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES    
Borrowings 19 4,171,790 5,994,380 
Provisions 21 36,617 22,332 
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES  4,208,407 6,016,712 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  9,616,654 18,387,114 
NET ASSETS  14,505,117 41,977,943 
    
EQUITY    
Issued capital 22 48,453,838 46,629,898 
Reserves 23 98,222 98,222 
(accumulated losses)  (33,377,840) (4,366,894) 
Parent interest  15,174,220 42,361,226 
Foreign currency translation reserve   (669,103) (383,283) 
TOTAL EQUITY  14,505,117 41,977,943 

 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the Year Ended 30 June 2018 
 

  Consolidated Group 
 Notes 2018 2017 

  $ $ 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES    
Receipts from customers  25,211,591 61,954,385 
Payments to suppliers and employees  (26,336,096) (58,479,452) 
Interest Received  11,389 15,146 
Interest Paid  (268,395) (214,911) 
Income tax (Paid)   (334,723) (727,072) 
Net cash (used in) / provided by operating activities 25 (1,716,234) 2,548,096 
    
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES  (5,666,900) (7,098,834) 
Investment in acquisitions  - - 
Investment in Clipp  (59,742) (1,035,932) 
Purchase of property, plant and equipment  (708,990) (3,665,139) 
Purchase of intangible assets  (6,435,632) (11,799,905) 
Net cash used in investing activities    
    
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES  (1,343,024) - 
Loan Repayment  1,933,485 367,715 
Proceeds from borrowings  1,823,940 - 
Issue of capital  2,414,401 367,715 
Net cash provided by financing activities    
    
Net (decrease) in cash held  (5,737,465) (8,884,094) 
Cash at beginning of financial year  9,071,741 17,955,835 
Cash at end of financial year 9 3,334,276 9,071,741 

 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year Ended 30 June 2018 
 
Consolidated Group  
 

  
Issued 
Capital 

Accumulated 
Losses Reserves 

Foreign Currency 
Reserve Total Equity 

 $ $ $ $ $ 
Balance as at 30 
June 2016 45,300,648 (5,962,570) 793,484 (158,486) 39,973,076 

Issued Capital 1,277,045 - - - 1,277,045 

Profit for the year 
 

1,595,676 
 

- 1,595,676 

Share issued 
costs 

 
- - - - 

Option reserve: 
options issued 

- - 
 

- - 

Option reserve: 
options expired 

- - (643,057) - (643,057) 

Option reserve: 
options 
converting to 
capital 

52,205 - (52,205) - - 

Foreign exchange 
(loss) from OCI 

- - - (224,797) (224,797) 

Balance as at 30 
June 2017 

46,629,898 (4,366,894) 98,222 (383,283) 41,977,943 

Issued Capital 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 

Profit for the year - (29,010,946) - - (29,010,946) 

Share issued 
costs 

(176,060) - - - (176,060) 

Option reserve: 
options issued 

- - - - - 

Option reserve: 
options expired 

- - - - - 

Option reserve: 
options 
converting to 
capital 

- - - - - 

Foreign exchange 
(loss) from OCI 

- - - (285,820) (285,820) 

Balance as at 30 
June 2018 48,453,838 (33,377,840) 98,222 (669,103) 14,505,117 

 
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements. 
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Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies 
 
These consolidated financial statements and notes represent those of Impelus Limited and controlled 
entities (‘Consolidated Group’ or ‘Group’). The separate financial statements of the parent entity, Impelus 
Limited, have not been presented within this financial report as permitted by the Corporations Act 2001. 
 
The financial statements were authorised for issue on 31 August 2018 by the directors of the Company. 
 
Basis of Preparation 
 
The financial statements are general purpose financial statements that have been prepared in accordance 
with Australian Accounting Standards, Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative 
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001. The 
Group is a for profit entity for financial reporting purposes under Australian Accounting Standards. 
 
Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in 
financial statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. 
Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the financial statements and notes also 
comply with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by International Accounting Standards 
Board (IASB).  
 
Except for cash flow information the financial statements have been prepared on an accruals basis and are 
based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of selected non-
current assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. Fair Value which is level 3 “unobservable inputs” is 
determined primarily from inputs reflective of management expectations. 
 
The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated. 
 

A. Principles of Consolidation 
 
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets, liabilities and results of entities controlled by 
Impelus Limited at the end of the reporting period. A controlled entity is any entity over which Impelus 
Limited has the power to govern the financial and operating policies so as to obtain benefits from the 
entity’s activities. 
 
Where controlled entities have entered or left the Group during the year, the financial performance of those 
entities are included only for the period of the year that they were controlled. A list of controlled entities is 
contained in Note 12 to the financial statements. 
 
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, all inter-group balances and transactions between 
entities in the consolidated Group have been eliminated in full on consolidation. 
 
Non-controlling interests, being the equity in a subsidiary not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent, 
are reported separately within the Equity section of the consolidated Statement of Financial Position and 
Statement of Profit or Loss. The minority interests in the net assets comprise their interests at the date of 
the original business combination and their share of changes in equity since that date. 
 
Business Combinations 
 
Business combinations occur where an acquirer obtains control over one or more businesses. 
 
A business combination is accounted for by applying the acquisition method, unless it is a combination 
involving entities or businesses under common control. The business combination will be accounted for  
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Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
from the date that control is attained, whereby the fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities 
(including contingent liabilities) assumed is recognised (subject to certain limited exemptions). 
 
When measuring the consideration transferred in the business combination, any asset or liability resulting 
from a contingent consideration arrangement is also included. Subsequent to initial recognition, contingent 
consideration classified as equity is not remeasured and its subsequent settlement is accounted for within 
equity. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is remeasured each reporting period to 
fair value, recognising any change to fair value in profit or loss, unless the change in value can be identified 
as existing at acquisition date. 
 
All transaction costs incurred in relation to the business combination are expensed to the statement of 
profit or loss. The acquisition of a business may result in the recognition of goodwill or a gain from a bargain 
purchase. 
 
Goodwill 
 
Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.  Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the 
sum of: 
 

i. the consideration transferred; 
 

ii. any non-controlling interest; and 
 

iii. the acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest over the acquisition date 
fair value of net identifiable assets acquired. 

 
The acquisition date fair value of the consideration transferred for a business combination plus the 
acquisition date fair value of any previously held equity interest shall form the cost of the investment in the 
separate financial statements. 
 
Fair value uplifts in the value of pre-existing equity holdings are taken to the statement of profit or loss. 
Where changes in the value of such equity holdings had previously been recognised in other comprehensive 
income, such amounts are recycled to profit or loss. 
 
The amount of goodwill recognised on acquisition of each subsidiary in which the Group holds less than a 
100% interest will depend on the method adopted in measuring the non-controlling interest. The Group 
can elect in most circumstances to measure the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value 
(full goodwill method) or at the non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the subsidiary's identifiable 
net assets (proportionate interest method). In such circumstances, the Group determines which method to 
adopt for each acquisition and this is stated in the respective notes to these financial statements disclosing 
the business combination. 
 
Under the full goodwill method, the fair value of the non-controlling interest is determined using valuation 
techniques which make the maximum use of market information where available. Under this method, 
goodwill attributable to the non-controlling interests is recognised in the consolidated financial statements. 
 
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisition of 
associates is included in investments in associates. 
 
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually and is allocated to the Group's cash-generating units or groups 
of cash- generating units, representing the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored not larger than an 
operating segment. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill 
related to the entity disposed of. 
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Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Changes in the ownership interests in a subsidiary are accounted for as equity transactions and do not 
affect the carrying values of goodwill. 
 

B. Income Tax 
 
The income tax expense (revenue) for the year comprises current income tax expense (income) and 
deferred tax expense (income). 
 
Current income tax expense charged to profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable income. Current tax 
liabilities (assets) are measured at the amounts expected to be paid to (recovered from) the relevant 
taxation authority. 
 
Deferred income tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability balances 
during the year as well as unused tax losses. Current and deferred income tax expense (income) is charged 
or credited outside profit or loss when the tax relates to items that are recognised outside profit or loss. 
 
Except for business combinations, no deferred income tax is recognised from the initial recognition of an 
asset or liability, where there is no effect on accounting or taxable profit or loss. 
 
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period 
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, and their measurement also reflects the manner in which 
management expects to recover or settle the carrying amount of the related asset or liability. Deferred tax 
assets relating to temporary differences and unused tax losses are recognised only to the extent that it is 
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the benefits of the deferred tax asset can 
be utilised. 
 
Where temporary differences exist in relation to investments in subsidiaries, branches, associates, and joint 
ventures, deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised where the timing of the reversal of the 
temporary difference can be controlled and it is not probable that the reversal will occur in the foreseeable 
future. 
 
Current tax assets and liabilities are offset where a legally enforceable right of set-off exists and it is 
intended that net settlement or simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and liability 
will occur. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where: (a) a legally enforceable right of set-off exists; 
and (b) the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority 
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities where it is intended that net settlement or 
simultaneous realisation and settlement of the respective asset and liability will occur in future periods in 
which significant amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities are expected to be recovered or settled. 
 
Impelus Limited and its wholly-owned Australian controlled entities implemented the tax consolidation 
legislation. 
 
The head entity, Impelus Limited and the controlled entities in the tax consolidated group continue to 
account for their own current and deferred tax amounts. The Group has applied the Group allocation 
approach in determining the appropriate amount of current taxes and deferred taxes to allocate to 
members of the tax consolidated Group. 
 
In addition to its own current and deferred tax amounts, Impelus Limited also recognises the current tax 
liabilities (or assets) and the deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and unused tax credits 
assumed from controlled entities in the tax consolidated Group. 
 
Assets or liabilities arising under tax funding agreements with the tax consolidated entities are recognised 
as amounts receivable from or payable to other entities in the Group. 
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Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Any difference between the amounts assumed and amounts receivable or payable under the tax funding 
agreement are recognised as a contribution to (or distribution from) wholly-owned tax consolidated 
entities. 
 

C. Plant and Equipment 
 
Each class of plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated 
depreciation and impairment losses. 
 
Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis and therefore carried at cost less accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment. In the event the carrying amount of plant and equipment 
is greater than the estimated recoverable amount, the carrying amount is written down immediately to the 
estimated recoverable amount and impairment losses are recognised either in profit or loss or as a 
revaluation decrease if the impairment losses relate to a re-valued asset. A formal assessment of 
recoverable amount is made when impairment indicators are present (refer to Note 1.F for details of 
impairment). 
 
The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by directors to ensure it is not in excess 
of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the 
expected net cash flows that will be received from the asset’s employment and subsequent disposal. The 
expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts. 
 
Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as 
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the 
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to 
the statement of profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred. 
 

Depreciation 
 
The depreciable amount of all fixed assets is depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives to 
the consolidated Group commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold 
improvements are depreciated over the shorter of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated 
useful lives of the improvements. 
 
The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are: 
 

Class of Fixed Asset   Depreciation Rate 
Leasehold improvements   20% 
Furniture and fittings   20% 
Computer equipment   33% 
Internet / website   33% - 67% 
Software developed   25% 
Software acquired through acquisitions 20% 
 

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each 
reporting period. 
 
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying 
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. 
 
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These 
gains and losses are included in the statement of profit or loss. When re-valued assets are sold, amounts 
included in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings. 
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Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

D. Leases 
 
Leases of fixed assets: where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the ownership of the asset 
but not the legal ownership that is transferred to entities in the consolidated Group, are classified as finance 
leases. 
 
Finance leases are capitalised by recording an asset and a liability at the lower of the amounts equal to the 
fair value of the leased property or the present value of the minimum lease payments, including any 
guaranteed residual values. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction of the lease liability and 
the lease interest expense for the period. 
 
Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated useful lives or the 
lease term. 
 
Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, 
are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred. 
 
Lease incentives under operating leases are recognised as a liability and amortised on a straight-line basis 
over the life of the lease term. 
 

D. Financial Instruments 
 
i. Initial Recognition and Measurement 
 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the entity becomes a party to the contractual 
provisions to the instrument. For financial assets, this is equivalent to the date that the Company commits 
itself to either the purchase or sale of the asset (i.e. trade date accounting is adopted). 
 
Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except where the 
instrument is classified at fair value through profit or loss, in which case transaction costs are expensed to 
profit or loss immediately. 
 
ii. Classification and Subsequent Measurement  

 
Loans and Receivables 

 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market and are substantially measured at amortised cost using the effective interest 
rate method. 
 
Loans and receivables are included in current assets, except for those which are not expected to mature 
within 12 months after reporting date (all other loans and receivables are classified as non-current assets). 
 
iii. Impairment 
 
At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial 
asset has been impaired. A financial asset (or a group of financial assets) is deemed to be impaired if, and 
only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events (a “loss event”) having 
occurred, which has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset(s). 
 
In the case of financial assets carried at amortised cost, loss events may include: indications that the debtors 
or a group of debtors are experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or 
principal payments; indications that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and 
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults. 
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Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
For financial assets carried at amortised cost (including loans and receivables), a separate allowance 
account is used to reduce the carrying amount of financial assets impaired by credit losses. After having 
taken all possible measures of recovery, if management establishes that the carrying amount cannot be 
recovered by any means, at that point the written-off amounts are charged to the allowance account or the 
carrying amount of impaired financial assets is reduced directly if no impairment amount was previously 
recognised in the allowance account. 
 
When the terms of financial assets that would otherwise have been past due or impaired have been 
renegotiated, the Group recognises the impairment for such financial assets by taking into account the 
original terms as if the terms have not been renegotiated so that the loss events that have occurred are 
duly considered. 

 
iv. De-recognition 

 
Financial assets are de-recognised when the contractual rights to receipt of cash flows expire or the asset 
is transferred to another party whereby the entity no longer has any significant continuing involvement in 
the risks and benefits associated with the asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognised when the related 
obligations are discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the 
financial liability extinguished or transferred to another party and the fair value of consideration paid, 
including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss. 
 

E. Impairment of Assets 
 
At the end of each reporting period, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may 
be impaired. The assessment will include the consideration of external and internal sources of information 
including dividends received from subsidiaries, associates or jointly controlled entities deemed to be out of 
pre-acquisition profits. If such an indication exists, an impairment test is carried out on the asset by 
comparing the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell 
and value in use, to the asset’s carrying amount. Any excess of the asset’s carrying amount over its 
recoverable amount is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at a re-valued 
amount in accordance with another Standard (e.g. in accordance with the revaluation model in AASB 116). 
Any impairment loss of a re-valued asset is treated as a revaluation decrease in accordance with that other 
Standard. 
 
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the 
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
 
Impairment testing is performed annually for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives. 
 

F. Intangible Assets Other Than Goodwill  
 
Research and Development 
 
Expenditure during the research phase of a project is recognised as an expense when incurred. Software 
and product development costs are capitalised only when technical feasibility studies identify that the 
project will deliver future economic benefits and these benefits can be measured reliably. Development 
costs have a finite life and are amortised on a systematic basis matched to the future economic benefits 
over the useful life of the project. 
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Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 

G. Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances  
 
Functional and Presentation Currency 
 
The functional currency of each of the Group’s entities is measured using the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which that entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented 
in Australian dollars which is the parent entity’s functional and presentation currency. 
 
Transaction and Balances 
 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at 
the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the year-end exchange rate. 
Non-monetary items measured at historical cost continue to be carried at the exchange rate at the date of 
the transaction. Non-monetary items measured at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date 
when fair values were determined. 
 
Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit 
or loss, except where deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedge. 
 
Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary items are recognised directly in equity to 
the extent that the gain or loss is directly recognised in equity; otherwise the exchange difference is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 
 
Group Companies 
 
The financial results and position of foreign operations whose functional currency is different from the 
Group’s presentation currency are translated as follows: 
 

• Assets and liabilities are translated at year-end exchange rates prevailing at the end of that 
reporting period; 

• Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates for the period; and 
• Retained earnings are translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. 

 
Exchange differences arising on translation of foreign operations are transferred directly to the Group’s 
foreign currency translation reserve in the statement of financial position. These differences are recognised 
in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which the operation is disposed. 
 

H. Provisions 
 
Provisions are recognised when the Group has legal or constructive obligation, as a result of past events, 
for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result, and that outflow can be reliably 
measured. Provisions are measured using the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation 
at the end of the reporting period. 
 

I. Employee Benefits 
 
Provision is made for the Group’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by 
employees to the end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are expected to be settled within one 
year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. Employee 
benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash 
outflows to be made for those benefits. In determining the liability, consideration is given to employee 
wages increases and the probability that the employee may satisfy vesting requirements. Those cash flows  
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Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
are discounted using market yields on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match the 
expected timing of cash flows. 
 
Equity-settled Compensation 
 
The Group operates an employee share ownership plan. Share-based payments to employees are 
measured at the fair value of the instruments issued and amortised over the vesting periods. Share-based 
payments to non-employees are measured at the fair value of goods or services received or the fair value 
of the equity instruments issued, if it is determined the fair value of the goods or services cannot be reliably 
measured and are recorded at the date the goods or services are received. The corresponding amount is 
recorded to the option reserve. The fair value of options is determined using the Black-Scholes pricing 
model. The number of shares and options expected  

 
Equity-settled Compensation 
 
to vest is reviewed and adjusted at the end of each reporting period such that the amount recognised for 
services received as consideration for the equity instruments granted is based on the number of equity 
instruments that eventually vest. 
 

J. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly 
liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts 
are shown within short-term borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial position. 
 

K. Revenue 
 
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into account 
any trade discounts and volume rebates allowed. When the inflow of consideration is deferred, it is treated 
as the provision of financing and is discounted at a rate of interest that is generally accepted in the market 
for similar arrangements. The difference between the amount initially recognised and the amount 
ultimately received is interest revenue. 
 
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point of delivery as this corresponds to the transfer of 
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and the cessation of all involvement in those goods. 
Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest rate method. 
 
All revenue is stated net of the amount of Goods and Services Tax (GST). 

 
L. Borrowing Costs 

 
Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that necessarily 
take a substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those 
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. 
 
All other borrowing costs are recognised in the period in which they are incurred. 
 

M. Goods and Services Tax (GST) 
 
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST 
incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATO). 
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Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 
 
Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount 
of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included with other receivables or payables in the 
statement of financial position. 
 
Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or 
financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are presented as operating cash 
flows included in receipts from customers or payments to suppliers. 
 

N. Comparative Figures 
 
Where required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes 
in presentation for the current financial year. 
 
Where the Group has retrospectively applied an accounting policy or makes a retrospective restatement of 
items in the financial statements, or when it reclassifies items in its financial statements, an additional 
statement of financial position as at the beginning of the earliest comparative period will be disclosed. 
 

O. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgment 
 
The directors evaluate estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial statements based on 
historical knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of 
future events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the 
Group. 
 
Estimation Uncertainty 
 
Information about estimates and assumptions that have the most significant effect on recognition and 
measurement of assets, liabilities, income and expenditures is provided below. Actual results may be 
substantially different. 
 
Key Estimates – Impairment 
 
The Group assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluating conditions specific to the 
Group that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of relevant assets are 
reassessed using the value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key assumptions. 
 
In assessing impairment, management estimates the recoverable amount of each asset or cash-generating 
unit based on expected future cash flows and uses an interest rate to discount them. Estimation uncertainty 
relates to assumptions about future operating results and the determination of a suitable discount rate. 
 
As a result of impairment testing on the carrying amount of goodwill, $21,746,432 has been written off in 
the financial year ending 30 June 2018. 
 
Useful Lives of Depreciable Assets 
 
Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of depreciable assets at each reporting date, based on 
the expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical obsolescence that may 
change the utility of certain software and IT equipment. 
 
Key Judgements – Provisions of Impairment of Receivables 
 
A provision for impairment of $822,000 has been recognised in respect of receivables as at year ended 30 
June 2018. 
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Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 

P. New Accounting Standards for Application in Future Periods 
 
Accounting Standards and Interpretations issued by the AASB that are not yet mandatorily applicable to the 
Group, together with an assessment of the potential impact of such pronouncements on the Group when 
adopted in future periods, are discussed below: 
 
AASB 9: Financial Instruments and associated Amending Standards (applicable to annual reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018). 
 
The Standard will be applicable retrospectively (subject to the provisions on hedge accounting outlined 
below) and includes revised requirements for the classification and measurement of financial instruments, 
revised recognition and derecognition requirements for financial instruments and simplified requirements 
for hedge accounting. 
 
The key changes that may affect the Group on initial application include certain simplifications to the 
classification of financial assets, simplifications to the accounting of embedded derivatives, upfront 
accounting for expected credit loss, and the irrevocable election to recognise gains and losses on 
investments in equity instruments that are not held for trading in other comprehensive income. AASB 9 also 
introduces a new model for hedge accounting that will allow greater flexibility in the ability to hedge risk, 
particularly with respect to hedges of non-financial items. Should the entity elect to change its hedge policies 
in line with the new hedge accounting requirements of the Standard, the application of such accounting 
would be largely prospective. 
 
The group does not expect a significant impact on its balance sheet or equity on applying classification and 
measurement requirements of AASB 9. It expects to continue to measure derivatives at Fair Value through 
other comprehensive income. 
  
The Group has appointed a consultant to complete an assessment of the impacts of AASB 9. Based on a 
preliminary assessment performed over each line of business and product type, the effects of AASB 9 are 
not expected to have a material effect on the Group. 
 
AASB 15: Revenue from Contracts with Customers (applicable to annual reporting periods commencing on 
or after 1 January 2018). 
 
The Group has appointed a consultant to complete an assessment of the impacts of AASB 15. Although 
the directors anticipate that the adopting of AASB 15 may have an impact on the groups financial 
statements, it is not expected to generate material differences to the current or future years’ results. 
 
AASB 16: Leases (applicable to annual reporting periods commencing on or after 1 January 2019). When 
effective, this Standard will: 
 

• replace AASB 117 Leases and some lease-related Interpretations; 
• require all leases to be accounted for ‘on-balance sheet’ by lessees, other than short-term and 

low value asset leases; and 
• require new and difference disclosures about leases. 

 
This Standard will require retrospective restatement, as well as new and difference disclosures. Although 
the directors anticipate the adoption of AASB 16 may have an impact on the Group’s financial statements, 
it is impracticable at this stage to provide a reasonable estimate of such impact. 
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Note 1. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)  
 

Q. Going Concern 
 
The financial report has been prepared on the basis of a going concern. The basis presumes that funds 
will be available to finance future operations and the realization of assets and settlements of liabilities will 
occur in the normal course of business. 

The directors believe that the company will be able to fund future operations through share issues, debt 
instruments, control of costs and the continued commercialisation of its Performance Marketing division.  

 
Note 2:  Parent Information 2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 
The following information has been extracted from the books and 
records of the parent and has been prepared in accordance with 
Accounting Standards. 

  

   
Statement of Financial Position   
Assets   
Current assets 173,552 2,271,508 
Total current assets 173,552 2,271,508 
   
Non-current assets 7,329,912 29,829,605 
Total non-current assets 7,329,912 29,829,605 
    
Total assets 7,503,464 32,101,113 
    
Liabilities   
Current liabilities 2,459,181 6,844,257 
Total current liabilities 2,459,181 6,844,257 
Non-current liabilities -  - 
Total non-current liabilities    
Total liabilities 2,459,181 6,844,257 
    
Net Assets 5,044,283 25,256,856 
   
Equity   
Issued capital 48,453,838 46,629,898 
Accumulated losses (43,003,927) (21,124,817) 
Reserve 98,222 98,222 
Total Equity 5,548,133 25,603,303 
   
Foreign currency translation reserve (503,850) (346,446) 
Total comprehensive income 5,044,283 25,256,857 

 
Guarantees 
Impelus Limited has not entered into any guarantees, in the current or previous financial year, in relation 
to the debts of its subsidiaries. 
 
Contractual Commitments 
At 30 June 2018, Impelus Limited had not entered into any contractual commitments for the acquisition  
of property, plant and equipment. 
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Note 3: Revenue and Other Income 

Consolidated Group 

 2018 
$ 

2017 
$ 

A. Revenue from continuing operations   
Sales revenue:   
Revenue from services rendered          25,510,096  52,555,202 
Interest received:   
Other persons                 11,389  15,146 
Total revenue          25,521,485  52,570,348 
   
B. Total revenue and other income   
Attributable to members of the parent entity          25,521,485  52,570,348 

 
          25,521,485  52,570,348 
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Note 4. Profit / (Loss) for the Year 
 

 Consolidated Group 
 2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 
A. Expenses   
Borrowing expenses:   
Interest expense 325,432 214,911 
Total borrowing expense 325,432 214,911 
   
Legal expenses:   
Legal fees 265,375 259,558 
Total legal expenses 265,375 259,558 
   
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets:   
Software and website development 3,774,393 3,764,503 
Impairment of intangible assets 29,571,285 138,439 
Total amortisation and impairment 33,345,678 3,902,942 
   
Depreciation of non-current assets:   
Computer equipment 114,316  144,648  
Furniture and fixtures 109,586  95,119  
Leasehold improvements 181,873  171,373  
Motor vehicle -  59,825  
Impairment of tangible assets -  -    
Total depreciation 405,775  470,965  
   
Rental expense:   
Rental expense on operating leases 501,824 653,497 
Total rental expense 501,824 653,497 
   
Capitalised employee salaries:   
Capitalised IT development - 296,033 
Capitalised international development 550,770 1,016,763 
Capitalised platform development - 643,449 
Total capitalised employee salaries 550,770 1,956,245 
   
 
Employee benefits expense: 

 
 

Employee benefits expense 8,328,897 11,055,090 
Total employee benefits expense 8,328,897 11,055,090 

 

   

Total employee benefits expenditure 8,879,667 13,011,355 
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Note 4. Profit / (Loss) for the Year 
 

 Consolidated Group 
 2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 
A. Expenses   
Borrowing expenses:   
Interest expense 325,432 214,911 
Total borrowing expense 325,432 214,911 
   
Legal expenses:   
Legal fees 265,375 259,558 
Total legal expenses 265,375 259,558 
   
Amortisation and impairment of intangible assets:   
Software and website development 3,774,393 3,764,503 
Impairment of intangible assets 29,571,285 138,439 
Total amortisation and impairment 33,345,678 3,902,942 
   
Depreciation of non-current assets:   
Computer equipment 114,316  144,648  
Furniture and fixtures 109,586  95,119  
Leasehold improvements 181,873  171,373  
Motor vehicle -  59,825  
Impairment of tangible assets -  -    
Total depreciation 405,775  470,965  
   
Rental expense:   
Rental expense on operating leases 501,824 653,497 
Total rental expense 501,824 653,497 
   
Capitalised employee salaries:   
Capitalised IT development - 296,033 
Capitalised international development 550,770 1,016,763 
Capitalised platform development - 643,449 
Total capitalised employee salaries 550,770 1,956,245 
   
 
Employee benefits expense: 

 
 

Employee benefits expense 8,328,897 11,055,090 
Total employee benefits expense 8,328,897 11,055,090 

 

   

Total employee benefits expenditure 8,879,667 13,011,355 
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Note 5. Income Tax Expense 
 Consolidated Group 
 2018 

$ 
2017  

$ 
a. The components of income tax expense / (credit) comprise:   
   
Current Tax  64,577 220,688 
Deferred Tax  (327,673) (133,744) 
Under / (Over) provision of tax from prior years (525,429) (861,720) 
 (788,525) (774,776) 
   
b. The prima facie tax on profit / (loss) from ordinary activities before 
income tax is reconciled to the income tax expense / (benefit) as 
follows: 

  

   
Prima facie tax on Profit / (Loss) before income tax at 30% (10,760,045) 246,270 
   
Tax effect of:   
Other non-deductible items 7,535,504 49,316 
Other deductible items (676,605) - 
Other non-allowable items 2,169,786 - 
Carried forward tax losses utilised - - 
Movements in Deferred Taxes 1,468,264 152,165 
Movements in Deferred Taxes (Prior Year Adjustment) - (797,367) 
Under / (Over) provision of tax from prior years (525,429) (425,159) 
   
Income tax attributable to entity (788,525) (774,776) 

 
Note 6. Interests of Key Management Personnel (KMP) 
 
Refer to the remuneration report contained in the directors’ report for details of the remuneration paid or 
payable to each member of the Group’s key management personnel for the year ended 30 June 2018. 
 
The totals of remuneration paid to KMP of the Company and the Group during the year are as follows: 
 

Short-term employee benefits 931,726 1,930,638 
Post-employment benefits 56,439 72,773 
 988,165 2,003,411 
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Note 6. Interests of Key Management Personnel (KMP) (continued) 

KMP Options Holdings 
 
The number of options over ordinary shares held by each KMP of the Group during the financial year is as 
follows: 
 

30 June 2018 Balance at 
Beginning 

of Year 

Granted as 
Remuneration 

During the 
Year 

Other 
Changes 

During the 
Year 

Balance at 
End of Year 

Vested 
During 

the 
Year 

Vested and 
Exercisable 

Drew Kelton -                 -     - - - - 
David Haines - -     - - - - 
Gavin Whyte - -     - - - - 
Chris Thorpe 3,000,000 - (3,000,000) - - - 
Neil Wiles 3,000,000 - (3,000,000) - - - 
Ian Elliot - -     - - - - 
Simon Allison - -     - - - - 
 6,000,000  - (6,000,000) - - - 
30 June 2017       
Drew Kelton 3,000,000                 - (3,000,000) - - - 
David Haines 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - - 
Gavin Whyte 1,000,000 - (1,000,000) - - - 
Chris Thorpe 8,500,000 - (5,500,000) 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 
Neil Wiles 8,500,000 - (5,500,000) 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 
Simon Allison 8,000,000 - (8,000,000) - - - 
 30,000,000 -  (24,000,000) 6,000,000 - 6,000,000 

 
KMP Shareholdings 
 
The number of ordinary shares held in Impelus Limited by each key management personnel of the Group 
during the financial year is as follows: 
 

30 June 2018 Balance at 
Beginning of the 

Year 

Granted as 
Remuneration 

During the Year 

Other Changes 
During the Year 

Balance at End  
of Year 

Drew Kelton 300,000 - - 300,000 
David Haines 415,000 -    - 415,000 
Gavin Whyte 395,000 - - 395,000 
Chris Thorpe 22,176,639 - - 22,176,639 
Neil Wiles 19,533,000 - 750,000 20,283,000 
Simon Allison   1,000,000 - 500,000   1,500,000 
 43,819,639 - 1,250,000 45,069,639 
30 June 2017     
Drew Kelton 300,000 - - 300,000 
David Haines 415,000 -    - 415,000 
Gavin Whyte 395,000 - - 395,000 
Chris Thorpe 22,176,639 - - 22,176,639 
Neil Wiles 19,533,000 - - 19,533,000 
Simon Allison   1,000,000 - -   1,000,000 
 43,819,639 - - 43,819,639 
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Note 6. Interests of Key Management Personnel (KMP) (continued) 

Other KMP Transactions 
 
There have been no other transactions involving equity instruments other than those described in the tables 
above. For details of other transactions with KMP, refer to Note 30: Related Party Transactions.  For details 
of loans to KMP, refer to Note 10: Trade and Other Receivables. 
 
Note 7. Auditors’ Remuneration 
During the year the following fees were paid or payable for services provided by the auditor of the parent 
entity, it’s related practices and non-related audit firms: 

 Consolidated Group 

 2018 
$ 

2017 
$ 

Audit Services 
Auditor’s Remuneration, auditing or reviewing the financial reports: 

  

Group Auditors 169,196 195,996 
Other non-related Auditors 20,390 14,857 
 189,586 210,853 
 

Note 8. Earnings Per Share 

 

 
Consolidated Group 

A. Reconciliation of earnings to profit or loss: 2018 
$ 

2017 
$ 

(Loss) / Profit (29,010,946) 1,595,677 
(Loss) / Profit attributable to non-controlling equity interest   
Earnings used to calculate basic EPS (29,010,946) 1,595,677 
Earnings used in the calculation of dilutive EPS (29,010,946) 1,595,677 
   

B. Reconciliation of earnings to profit or loss from continuing 
operations: 

  

Profit from continuing operations (29,010,946) 1,595,677 
Profit attributable to non-controlling equity interest in respect of 
continuing operations 

  

Earnings used to calculate basic EPS from continuing operations (29,010,946) 1,595,677 
Earnings used in the calculation of dilutive EPS from continuing 
operations 

(29,010,946) 
1,595,677 

   
C. Reconciliation of earnings to profit or loss from discontinued 

operations: 
  

Loss from discontinued operations - - 
Loss attributable to non-controlling equity interest - - 
Earnings used to calculate basic EPS from discontinued 
operations 

- - 

   
 No. No. 
D. Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 

the year used in calculating basic EPS 
445,482,228 442,768,148 

Weighted average number of dilutive options outstanding  8,545,479  18,775,872 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during 
the year used in calculating dilutive EPS 

 
454,027,707 461,544,020 
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Note 9. Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 Consolidated Group 

 2018 2017 

Cash at bank and in hand 3,031,373 8,775,799 
Deposits at call 302,903 295,942 
 3,334,276 9,071,741 

 
The effective interest rate on at call bank deposits was 2.18% (2017: 2.24%). 
 
Note 10. Trade and Other Receivables 

 Consolidated Group 
 2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 
Current   
   
Trade receivables 3,500,287  7,864,388  
Provision for Doubtful Debt (130,219) (233,401) 
Provision for impairment  (822,000) - 
 2,548,068  7,630,987  
   
Other receivables 912,088  1,771,912  
Trade and other receivables 3,460,156 9,402,899 
        
Non – current        
Other receivables 252,992  249,804  

  

 
Credit Risk — Trade and Other Receivables 
 
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with respect to any single counterparty or group 
of counterparties other than those receivables specifically provided for and mentioned in Note 10. The class 
of assets described as Trade and Other Receivables is considered to be the main source of credit risk related 
to the Group. 
 
The following table details the Group’s trade and other receivables exposed to credit risk (prior to collateral 
and other credit enhancements) with ageing analysis and impairment provided for thereon. Amounts are 
considered as ‘past due’ when the debt has not been settled, with the terms and conditions agreed between 
the Group and the customer or counter party to the transaction. Receivables that are past due are assessed 
for impairment by ascertaining solvency of the debtors and are provided for where there are specific 
circumstances indicating that the debt may not be fully repaid to the Group.  The balances of receivables 
that remain within initial trade terms (as detailed in the table) are considered to be of high credit quality. 
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Note 10. Trade and Other Receivables (continued) 
 

Consolidated 
Group 

Gross 
Amount  

$ 

Past Due 
and 

Impaired  
$ 

Past Due but not Impaired Within 
Initial 
Trade 
Terms  

$ 

<30 days  
$ 

31–60 
days $ 

61–90 
days $ 

>90 days  
$ 

2018        
Trade & term 
receivables 2,548,068 - 554,884 230,792 78,404 596,049* 1,087,939 

Other 
receivables 

912,088 - 137,915 52,950 - 721,223 - 

 3,460,156   692,799 283,742 78,404 1,317,272 1,087,939 
* In FY 2018 an impairment charge of $822,000 has been recorded in the P&L 

 
2017        
Trade & term 
receivables 

7,630,987 - 1,728,914 489,461 508,151 1,462,823 3,441,638 

Other 
receivables 

1,771,912 - - - - - 1,771,912 

 9,402,899  1,728,914 489,461 508,151 1,462,823 5,213,550 
 
The Group nor the parent entity does not hold any financial assets with terms that have been negotiated 
which would otherwise be past due or impaired. 

 
Note 11. Other Assets 
 

  Consolidated Group 
  2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 
A. Current    
Prepayments  3,043,733 2,903,301 
 
B. Non-Current 

    

Formation costs  6,300 6,300 
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Note 12. Controlled Entities 
 
Controlled Entities Consolidated 

   

  Ownership Interest 
Name of Entity Country of 

Incorporation 
2018 

% 
2017 

% 
Parent Entity:    
Impelus Limited Australia   
    
Subsidiaries of Impelus Limited:    
Global One Mobile Entertainment Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 
Divolution Limited Australia 100 100 
1st Screen Pty Limited Australia 100 100 
6G Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 
Lead proof Pty Ltd (formerly 7A Pty Ltd) Australia 100 100 
8Z Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 
Convey Pty Ltd (formerly Level 3 Pty Ltd) Australia 100 100 
Mobipay Pty Ltd (formerly Convey Pty Ltd) Australia 100 100 
Convey Global Pte Ltd Singapore 100 100 
The Performance Factory Pty Ltd  Australia 100 100 
C2B Solutions Pty Ltd Australia 100 - 
Impelus EMEA Limited (formerly Eggmobi UK Limited) UK 100 100 
ADDGLU Pty Ltd (formerly Vizmond Pty Ltd) Australia 100 100 
Vizmond Media Pty Ltd Australia 100 100 
Marketing Punch Limited UK 100 100 
Impelus APAC Pty Ltd (formerly Marketing Punch Pty Ltd) Australia 100 100 
Clipp Pty Ltd Australia 97 97 

 
 
Note 13. Disposal of Controlled Entities 
 
No Entities were disposed of during the FY 2018. 

 
Note 14. Business Combinations: Acquisitions 
 
The Company has acquired C2B Solutions Pty Ltd (C2B), a Performance Marketing company (refer ASX 
announcement dated 14 August 2017). For developments with respect to the C2B Acquisition please see 
‘Post Balance Date’ below. 
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Note 14. Business Combinations: Acquisitions (continued) 
 
Purchase consideration: 
  
Fair Value 
$ 
  
Cash        2,500,000 
Contingent consideration      -  

  2,500,000 
Less: 
Cash            20,176 
Receivables             3,763 
Tangible Assets      - 
Intangible Asset – IT System                        - 
Payables          (23,939)  
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed   -  
Goodwill (i)        2,500,000  
Purchase consideration settled in cash 
Cash outflow on acquisition      2,500,000  
 
 
Provisional fair values are subject to final review by the Directors. 
 
No amount of the goodwill is deductible for tax purposes. 
 
EBITDA and revenue resulting from the acquisition of C2B Solutions Pty Limited amounting to $0.79 million 
and $2.96 million respectively are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income for the year ended 30 June 2018. These results have been consolidated since the 
date of the acquisition on 1 July 2017. 
 
Note 15. Goodwill  
  

Consolidated Group 
 2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 
Goodwill   
Goodwill on acquisitions – Performance Marketing Group 15,941,483 15,941,483 
Goodwill on acquisitions - Clipp 6,045,726 4,145,726 
FX Loss on Goodwill on acquisitions - UK (240,756) - 
Addition: 2,500,000 - 
Impairment of Goodwill (21,746,453) - 
Carrying Value at balance date 2,500,000 20,087,209  

 

Impairment Testing      
 
For the purposes of annual impairment testing goodwill is broken down into the following cash generated 
units which is consistent with business combination calculations. 

 30.06.18 
$ 

  
C2B Solutions 2,500,000 
Goodwill allocation at 30 June 2018 2,500,000 
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Note 15. Goodwill Update (continued) 
 
The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units were determined based on the value-in-use 
calculations covering a detailed five-year forecast, followed by an extrapolation of expected cash flows for 
the units remaining useful lives using the growth rates determined by management. The present value of 
the expected cash flows for this segment is determined by applying a suitable discount rate. 
 
Management has taken into account the industry growth rates and the relative likely competitive pressures 
on the sector, and a range of market growth rates for FY 2019. Management has assumed expenses grow 
by 10% year on year. The discount rate is based on the WACC for the Company.   
 
Growth rates: 
 

  FY 2019 FY 2020 FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 
C2B Solutions Growth 

rates 
5% 5% 5% 5% 5% 

C2B Solutions Growth 
rates 

10% 10% 10% 10% 10% 

C2B Solutions Growth 
rates 

15% 15% 15% 15% 15% 

 

Cash flow assumptions 
 
Management’s key assumptions for the businesses include, stable margin, and assumed expenses grow by 
10% year on year. Management believes growth will continue across FY 2019 to FY 2023 given the sectors 
infancy and increasing adoption rates. 
 
Apart from the considerations described in determining the value-in-use of the cash generating units 
described above, management is not currently aware of any other probable changes that would necessitate 
changes in its key estimates. 
 
Applying discount rate of 12%  
 

Growth Rate Cash generating unit CGU Goodwill NPV of cash flow 
5% C2B Solutions 2,500,000 3,729,901 

10% C2B Solutions 2,500,000 4,341,003 
15% C2B Solutions 2,500,000 5,031,081 

 
Applying discount rate of 18%  
 
 

Growth Rate Cash generating unit CGU Goodwill NPV of cash flow 
5% C2B Solutions 2,500,000 3,021,944 

10% C2B Solutions 2,500,000 3,503,759 
15% C2B Solutions 2,500,000 4,046,963 
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Note 16. Intangible Assets 
 

 Consolidated Group 
 2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 
Software systems from acquisitions 10,877,208 10,877,208 
Accumulated amortisation (2,985,718) (1,615,099) 
Net carrying value 7,891,490 9,262,109 
   
Software development 12,121,345 11,397,680 
Accumulated amortisation (7,661,714) (5,241,222) 
Provision for Impairment (2,221,675) - 
Net carrying value 2,237,956 6,156,458 
    
Content and web development costs 74,649  74,649  
Accumulated amortisation (74,649) (74,649)  
Net carrying value                      -    -  
    
Total Intangibles 10,129,446 15,418,567 

 
Movements in Carrying Amounts 
 
Movement in the carrying amount for each class of intangible assets between the beginning and the end 
of the current year. 
 

Consolidated Group: Software and 
Development 

Content & 
Web 

Development 

Goodwill Total 

 $ $ $ $ 
Year ended 30 June 2017     
Balance at the beginning of the 
year 

11,809,996 79,147 - 11,889,143 

Additions: external acquired     
Software acquired through 
acquisition 

3,659,029   3,659,029 

Software 1,765,930   1,765,930 
Additions: internally developed     
Software 1,956,245   1,956,245 
Disposals (8,130) (79,147) - (87,277) 
Amortisation / impairment (3,764,503) -  (3,764,503) 
 15,418,567 - - 15,418,567 
 
Year ended 30 June 2018 

    

Balance at the beginning of the 
year 

 15,418,567   -  -  15,418,567  

Additions: external acquired     
Software acquired through 
acquisition 

- - -  - 

Software  158,220     158,220  
Additions: internally developed      
Software  550,770  - -  550,770  
Disposals - - -  - 
FX Difference (2,042) - - (2,042) 
Amortisation / impairment (5,996,069) - - (5,996,069) 
    10,129,446              - -    10,129,446 

50   |   Impelus Annual Report 2018



Impelus Limited and Controlled Entities 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 
 

45 | P a g e  
 

Note 16. Intangible Assets (continued) 
 
Impairment Testing for Intangible Assets 
 
The recoverable amounts of the cash generating units were determined based on the value-in-use 
calculations covering a detailed five-year forecast, followed by an extrapolation of expected cash flows for 
the units remaining useful lives using the growth rates determined by management. The present value of 
the expected cash flows for this segment is determined by applying a suitable discount rate. 
 
Management has taken into account the industry growth rates and the relative likely competitive pressures 
on the sector, and a range of market growth rates for FY 2019. Management has assumed expenses grow 
by 10% year on year. The discount rate is based on the WACC for the Company.   
 
Growth rates 
 
Management assumes 20% growth for FY 2019, 40% growth for FY 2020, 10% growth for FY 2021, 20% 
growth for FY 2022, 10% growth for FY 2023. 
 

Cash flow assumptions 
 
Management’s key assumptions for the businesses include, stable margin, and assumed expenses grow by 
10% year on year. Management believes growth will continue across FY 2019 to FY 2023 given the sectors 
infancy and increasing adoption rates. 
 
Apart from the considerations described in determining the value-in-use of the cash generating units 
described above, management is not currently aware of any other probable changes that would necessitate 
changes in its key estimates. 
 
Applying discount rate of 24%  
 

Growth Rate Cash generating unit CGU Goodwill NPV of cash flow 
5% IMS 7,891,490 9,924,668 

 
Note 17. Plant and Equipment 
 

 Consolidated Group 
 2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 
Computer equipment   
At cost 757,939 742,218 
Accumulated depreciation (674,530) (560,982) 
 83,409 181,236 
Furniture and fittings   
At cost 569,637 567,475 
Accumulated depreciation (368,633) (260,031) 
 201,004 307,444 
Leasehold improvements   
At cost 1,052,235 1,082,790 
Accumulated depreciation (513,999) (332,125) 
 538,236 750,665 
Motor vehicle   
At cost 62,579 155,041 
Accumulated depreciation  (62,579) (112,979) 
 - 42,062 
Total plant and equipment 822,649 1,281,407 
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Note 17. Plant and Equipment (continued) 
 
Movements in Carrying Amounts  
 
Movements in the carrying amounts for each class of plant and equipment between the beginning and the 
end of the current financial year: 
 

Consolidated Group: Computer 
Equipmen

t $ 

Furniture 
and 

Fittings $ 

Leasehold 
Improvements  

$ 

Motor 
Vehicle 

$ 

Total $ 

Balance at 1 July 2016 249,316 401,894 894,539 101,970 1,647,719 
Additions 76,568 129,276 173,298 11,848 390,990 
Disposals - (128,607) (145,799) (11,929) (286,337) 
Depreciation expense (144,648) (95,119) (171,373) (59,825) (470,965) 
Balance at 30 June 2017 181,236 307,444 750,665 42,062 1,281,407 
Balance at the beginning of 
year 

181,236 307,444 750,665 42,062 1,281,407 

Additions 18,444 2,459 28,141 10,698 59,742 
Disposals (1,955) - - (52,760) (54,715) 
Depreciation expense (114,316) (109,586) (181,873) - (405,775) 
FX Difference - 982 (51) - 931 
Adjustment - (295) (58,646) - (58,941) 
Closing value at 30 June 
2018 83,409 201,004 538,236 - 822,649 

 
Note 18. Trade and Other Payables 
 

 Consolidated 
 2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 
Current   
Trade Payables 1,194,607  3,141,995  
Sundry payables and accrued expenses 652,982 413,088  
 1,847,589  3,555,083 

Note 19. Borrowings 
 2018 2017 
Current $ $ 
Loan - Secured 327,490 314,936 
Facility – Secured 2,400,000 - 
 2,727,490 314,936 
Non-current   
Loan - Secured 571,790 927,865 
Facility - Secured 3,600,000 5,066,515 
 4,171,790 5,994,380 
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Note 20. Tax 
 

Consolidated Group: Opening 
Balance 

Charged to 
Income 

Charged 
to Equity 

Prior Year 
Adjustment 

Closing 
Balance 

Deferred Tax Assets      
Accrued Expenses 248,169 (239,800)   8,369 
Fixed Assets (1,735,476) (1,009,028)   (2,744,504) 
Provisions 279,628 (37,427)   242,201 
Share issue costs 134,190 (9,040)   125,150 
Losses 1,131,693 1,689,704   2,821,397 
Tax offsets (R&D) 150,150 (30,544)   119,606 
Balance at 30 June 2018 208,354 363,865   572,219 
 
Deferred Tax Assets not brought to account include the following: 

  

   
Capital losses: -     

 
Note 21. Provisions 
 
Long term employee benefits: 
 

 2018 
$ 

2017 
$ 

Opening balance at beginning of financial year 618,298 775,884 
Additional provisions 267,471 414,390 
Amounts used  (390,744) (571,976) 
Balance at end of financial year 495,025 618,298 

 
Long term employee benefits: 
 

 2018 
$ 

2017 
$ 

Analysis of total provisions   
Current   
Provision for employee benefits  471,271 595,966 
Provision for bonus 64,579 63,397 
Employment related ATO provision      217,187  822,449 
Total 753,037 1,481,812 
   
Non- current - - 
Provision for Employee Benefits 36,617 22,332 

 
A provision has been recognised for employee entitlements relating to long service leave. In calculating the 
present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long service leave being 
taken is based on historical data. The measurement and recognition criteria relating to employee benefits 
have been included in Note 1. 
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Note 22. Issued Capital 

 

 Consolidated Group 
 2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 
Ordinary shares   
540,927,882 (2017: 442,927,645) fully paid ordinary shares 48,453,838 46,629,898 
   
 No. No. 
A. Ordinary shares   
At the beginning of the reporting period 442,927,645 436,257,263 
Shares issued during the year 98,000,237 6,670,382 
At reporting date 540,927,882 442,927,645 

 
 
During the financial year ending 30 June 2018: nil options were exercised at various exercise prices. 
 
Options issued: 
 
Subject to receiving shareholder approval at the next general meeting of shareholders three million 
(3,000,000) options were issued to Ian Elliot on the following terms: first tranche – 1,000,000 options vesting 
29 November 2018 exercisable at 8.25 cents and expiring 29 November 2021, second tranche – 1,000,000 
options vesting 29 November 2019 exercisable at 8.25 cents and expiring 29 November 2022, third tranche 
- 1,000,000 options vesting 29 November 2020 exercisable at 8.25 cents and expiring 29 November 2023.  
 
Two million (2,000,000) options exercisable at 3.7 cents and expiring 13 June 2020 were granted for 
marketing services provided in relation to the Placement (refer ASX announcement 6 June 2018).  
 
Capital raised: 
 
Ninety-eight million fully paid ordinary shares were issued at $0.02 per share to accelerate the roll-out of 
the recently launched Solvers Premium Digital Assets, to scale up the UK Digital Performance Marketing 
operations, and for general working capital.   
 
 A. Ordinary Shares 
 
Ordinary shares participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the parent entity in proportion 
to the number of shares held. 
 
At the shareholders’ meetings, each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise 
each shareholder has one vote on a show of hands. 
 
B. Capital Management 
 
Management controls the capital of the Group in order to maintain a good debt to equity ratio, provide 
the shareholders with adequate returns and ensure that the Group can fund its operations and continue 
as a going concern. The Group’s debt and capital includes ordinary share capital, and financial liabilities, 
supported by financial assets. 

C. Options 
 
For information relating to the Impelus Limited employee option plan including details of options issued, 
exercised and lapsed during the financial year and the options outstanding at year-end, refer to Note 26: 
Share Based Payments for Acquisition. 
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Note 22. Issued Capital (continued) 
 

For information relating to share options issued to Key Management personnel during the financial year, 
refer to Note 6: Interests of Key Management Personnel (KMP). 

Note 23. Reserves 

 Consolidated Group 
 2017 

$ 
2017 

$ 
Employee equity settled benefits   
Opening balance 48,722 578,770 
Expensed during the year - - 
Forfeited during the year - (477,843) 
Exercised during the year - (52,205) 
Closing balance 48,722 48,722 
Other equity settled benefits   
Opening balance 49,500 214,714 
Granted / exercised during the year - - 
Forfeited during the year - (165,214) 
Closing balance 49,500 49,500 
   
At reporting date 98,222 98,222 

 
Employee equity settled benefits reserve arises on the grant of share options to employees under the 
Impelus Limited Employee Share Option Plan. Amounts are transferred out of the reserve into issued capital 
when the options are exercised. Further information about share based payments to employees is in Note 
26 to the financial statements. 
 
Note 24. Operating Segments 

 
A. Identification of Reportable Segments 
 
The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used 
by the Board of Directors (chief operating decision makers) in assessing performance and determining the 
allocation of resources. 
 
The Group is managed primarily on the basis of product category and service offerings as the diversification 
of the Group’s operations inherently have different risk profiles and performance assessment criteria. 
Operating segments are therefore determined on the same basis. 
 
Reportable segments disclosed are based on aggregating operating segments where the segments are 
considered to have similar economic characteristics and are also similar with respect to the following: 
 

• The products sold and / or services provided by segment; 
• the type or class of customer for the products or services; 
• the distribution method; and 
• any external regulatory requirements. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Impelus Annual Report 2018   |   55



Impelus Limited and Controlled Entities 
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018 
 

50 | P a g e  
 

Note 24. Operating Segments (continued) 
 
B. Types of Products and Services by Segment 
 

i. M Marketing 

The Company through its DPM customer acquisition platforms and other infrastructure, enables 
businesses to generate customers at scale. The Company utilises its proprietary and integrated partner 
technology, tools and data assets from its offices in the UK and Australia to seamlessly connect and 
engage consumers with products they value, enabling better customer generation for businesses via 
digital channels and devices. 
 

ii. Carrier Billing 

The Company enables itself and its partners integrated customer acquisition, management and carrier 
billing via mobile devices. Consumers seamlessly engage with digital product and service offers and utilise 
carrier billing to conveniently pay for them on their mobile devices. 
 

iii. Clipp 

Clipp is a bar tab and restaurant bill payment smart phone application. The application enables customers 
to open a bar tab via the Clipp smart phone application to purchase food and drink through the 
applications powerful functionality and point of sale (POS) integration. In the 2nd Half of FY2018, the 
operations of Clipp were merged with the Digital Performance Marketing business. 
 
C. Basis of Accounting for Purposes of Reporting by Operating Segments 

 
i. Accounting Policies Adopted 

 
Unless stated otherwise, all amounts reported to the Board of Directors, being the chief decision makers 
with respect to operating segments, are determined in accordance with accounting policies that are 
consistent to those adopted in the annual financial statement of the Group. 
 

ii. Intersegment Transactions 
 
An internally determined transfer price is set for all intersegment sales. This price is reset quarterly and is 
based on what would be realised in the event the sale was made to an external party at arm’s length. All 
such transactions are eliminated on consolidation of the Group’s financial statements. 

 
Corporate charges are allocated to reporting segments based on the segments’ overall proportion of 
revenue generation within the Group. The Board of Directors believes this is the representative of likely  
consumption of head office expenditure that should be used in assessing segment performance and cost 
recoveries. 
 
Intersegment loans payable and receivable are initially recognised at the consideration received / to be 
received net of transaction costs. If intersegment loans receivable and payable are not on commercial 
terms, these are not adjusted to fair value based on market interest rates. This policy represents a departure 
from that applied to the statutory financial statements. 
 

iii. Segment Assets 
 
Where an asset is used across multiple segments, the asset is allocated to the segment that receives 
majority economic value from the asset. In the majority of instances, segment assets are clearly identifiable 
on the basis of their nature and physical location. 
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Note 24. Operating Segments (continued) 
 

iv. Segment Liabilities 
 
Liabilities are allocated to segments where there is a direct nexus between the incurrence of the liability 
and the operations of the segment. Borrowings and tax liabilities are generally considered to relate to the 
Group as a whole and are not allocated. Segment liabilities include trade and other payables and certain 
direct borrowings. 
 

v. Unallocated Items 
 
The following items of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities are not allocated to operating segments as 
they are not considered part of the core operations of any segment: 

 
• impairment of assets and other non-recurring items of revenue or expense; 
• income tax expense; 
• deferred tax assets and liabilities; 
• current tax liabilities; 
• other financial liabilities; and 
• intangible assets. 

     
D. Segment Performance 
 

30 June 2018 C Billing 
$ 

M 
Marketing* 

$ 

Clipp* 
$ 

Total 
$ 

REVENUE     
External sales 8,084,913 17,210,551 214,632 25,510,096 
Interest revenue 7,755 1,150 2,483 11,388 
Total segment revenue 8,092,668 17,211,701 217,115 25,521,484 
Segment gross profit 5,996,495 9,295,560 150,361 15,442,416 
Segment net profit / (loss) before tax 2,377,209 4,387,834 (897,769) 5,867,274 
Reconciliation of segment result to group 
net profit / loss before tax 

  
  

Amounts not included in segment results 
but reviewed by the Board: 

  
  

Depreciation and amortisation and 
impairment 

  
 (33,751,452) 

Unallocated items:      
Corporate charges    (1,915,294) 
Net profit / (loss) before tax    (29,799,472) 

* In the 2nd Half of FY 2018, the operations of Clipp were merged with Digital Performance Marketing 
business. 
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Note 24. Operating Segments (continued) 
 
 

30 June 2017 C Billing 
$ 

M Marketing 
$ 

Clipp 
$ 

Total 
$ 

REVENUE     
External sales 24,219,526 23,787,162 4,548,514 52,555,202 
Interest revenue 14,524 42 580 15,146 
Total segment revenue 24,234,050 23,787,204 4,549,094 52,570,348 
Segment gross profit 12,456,595 10,068,470 111,961 22,637,026 
Segment net profit / (loss) before tax 5,417,883 2,190,801 (48,745) 7,559,939 
Reconciliation of segment result to 
group net profit / loss before tax 

  
   

Amounts not included in segment 
results but reviewed by the Board: 

  
   

Depreciation and amortisation and 
impairment 

  
  (4,373,907) 

Unallocated items:       
Corporate charges     (2,365,131) 
Net profit / (loss) before tax     820,901 

 
E. Segment Asset 

     

30 June 2018 C Billing 
$ 

M 
Marketing 

$ 

Clipp 
$ 

Total 
$ 

Segment assets   4,592,491   11,366,127   1,750,359   17,708,977  
Unallocated assets:     

Cash at bank  -     -     -       3,031,372  
Term deposit  -     -     -          302,903  
Deferred tax assets  -     -     -          572,219  
Investments  -     -     -                       -    
Goodwill  -     -     -       2,500,000  
Other  -     -     -               6,300  

Total group assets  -     -     -      
24,121,771  

     
30 June 2017 C Billing 

$ 
M 

Marketing 
$ 

Clipp 
$ 

Total 
$ 

Segment assets  20,048,734   6,720,749   2,486,495   29,255,978  
Unallocated assets:     

Cash at bank  -     -     -    8,775,799 
Term deposit  -     -     -     295,942 
Deferred tax assets  -     -     -     1,943,829  
Investments  -     -     -     -    
Goodwill  -     -     -     20,087,209  
Other     6,300  

Total group assets  -     -     -     
60,365,057  
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Note 24. Operating Segments (continued) 
 

F. Segment Liabilities 
 

30 June 2018 C Billing 
$ 

M 
Marketing 

$ 

Clipp 
$ 

Total 
$ 

Segment liabilities      790,512      1,060,989         32,706      1,884,207 
Unallocated liabilities:     

Income tax payable  -     -     -              80,131  
Deferred consideration  -     -     -                       -    
Short term provisions  -     -     -           753,036  
Borrowings  -     -     -        6,899,280  
Deferred Tax Liability  -     -     -                       -    

Total group liabilities  -     -     -        9,616,654  
     
30 June 2017 C Billing 

$ 
M 

Marketing 
$ 

Clipp 
$ 

Total 
$ 

Segment liabilities  3,060,720   1,692,607   242,502   4,995,829  
Unallocated liabilities:     

Income tax payable  -     -     -     656,489  
Deferred consideration  -     -     -     4,626,606  
Short term provisions  -     -     -     63,397  
Borrowings  -     -     -     6,309,316  
Deferred Tax Liability  -     -     -     1,735,476  

Total group liabilities  -     -     -     18,387,113  
 
G. Revenue by Geographical Region 

   
Revenue attributable to external customers is disclosed below, based 
on the location of the external customer 

30 June 
2018 

$ 

30 June 
2017 

$ 
Australia   16,866,355   39,164,534  
Bahrain C Billing            4,010   5,880  
Malaysia C Billing                     -     1,266,196  
New Zealand M Marketing     1,107,993   1,115,351  
North America M Marketing          98,400  - 
Norway C Billing 46,206   103,890  
Pakistan C Billing -  117,479  
Singapore C Billing 190,058   577,128  
Singapore M Marketing 1,730  - 
Switzerland C Billing 222,481   442,275  
Thailand C Billing -  14,867  
United Arab Emirates C Billing 69,303   501,618  
United Kingdom C Billing 1,463,401   3,774,766  
United Kingdom M Marketing 5,440,159   5,471,218  
Total revenue 25,510,096   52,555,202  
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Note 24. Operating Segments (continued) 
 

H. Assets by Geographical Region 
   
The location of segment assets by geographical location of the assets 
is disclosed below: 

30 June 
2018 

$ 

30 June 
2017 

$ 
Australia  20,597,817   55,372,545  
United Kingdom  3,438,769   4,688,635  
Singapore  85,185   57,325  
New Zealand  -     246,552  
Total segment assets  24,121,771   60,365,057  

 
I. Major Customers 
 
M payments, Telstra Corporation Limited, accounted for 10% of external revenue.  
M payments, Optus Pty Ltd, accounted for 7% of external revenue. 
M Marketing, Freedom Insurance, accounted for 10% of external revenue. 

Note 25. Cash Flow Information 
 
A. Reconciliation of Cash Flow (used in) / from operations with profit / (loss) after income tax 

 
 Consolidated Group 
 2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 
Profit / (loss) from ordinary activities after income tax (29,010,946) 1,595,677 
   
Non-cash flows in profit / (loss) from ordinary activities:   
Depreciation 4,180,167 4,235,468 
Amortisation / impairment loss of intangibles  - 
Impairment 29,571,285 138,439 
Loss on sale of subsidiary  - 
Share option  - 
Employee entitlements 439,132 641,424 
Bad debt 550,349 630,797 
   
Decrease / (increase) in receivables 4,364,101 3,766,967 
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets 1,089,695 3,320,408 
Decrease / (increase) in other assets (900,585) (2,141,927) 
Increase / (decrease) in trade creditors (2,198,673) (2,351,800) 
Increase / (decrease) in provisions (2,679,295) 36,165 
Increase / (decrease) in deferred consideration (4,626,606) (6,596,451) 
Increase / (decrease) in tax (2,494,858) (727,071) 
    
Cash flow (used in) / from operations (1,716,234) 2,548,096 
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Note 26. Share Based Payments for Acquisition 
 

i. The following share-based payments were made during the financial year 2018: nil. 
 

ii. A summary of the movements of all companies’ options issued is as follows: 
 

 Number Weighted 
Average 
Exercise 

Price 
Options outstanding as at 30 June 2010 12,850,000 $0.0619 
Granted - - 
Forfeited (200,000) $0.0375 
Exercised - - 
Expired (3,000,000) $0.1128 
Options outstanding as at 30 June 2011 9,650,000 $0.0466 
Granted 12,800,000 $0.0203 
Forfeited - - 
Exercised - - 
Expired (6,650,000) $0.0375 
Options outstanding as at 30 June 2012 15,800,000 $0.0295 
Granted 16,250,000 $0.0130 
Forfeited (3,000,000) $0.0688 
Exercised - - 
Options outstanding as at 30 June 2013 29,050,000 $0.0393 
Granted 9,225,000 $0.0224 
Forfeited - - 
Exercised (15,200,000) $0.0201 
Options exercisable as at 30 June 2014 23,075,000 $0.0129 
Granted 19,197,334 $0.1618 
Forfeited (550,000) $0.0000 
Exercised (8,565,000) $0.0258 
Options exercisable as at 30 June 2015 33,157,334 $0.0985 
Granted 17,500,000 $0.3310 
Forfeited - - 
Exercised (6,077,500) $0.0251 
Options exercisable as at 30 June 2016 44,579,834 $0.1817 
Granted - - 
Forfeited (32,759,834) $0.2075 
Exercised (2,470,000) $0 
Options exercisable as at 30 June 2017 9,350,000 $0.1897 
Granted 5,000,000 $0.0370 
Forfeited (9,350,000) $0 
Exercised - $0 
Options exercisable as at 30 June 2018 5,000,000 $0.1897 
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Note 27. Options 
 
Subject to receiving shareholder approval at the next general meeting of shareholders; Three million 
(3,000,000) options were issued to Ian Elliot on the following terms: first tranche – 1,000,000 options vesting 
29 November 2018 exercisable at 8.25 cents and expiring 29 November 2021, second tranche – 1,000,000 
options vesting 29 November 2019 exercisable at 8.25 cents and expiring 29 November 2022, Third tranche 
- 1,000,000 options vesting 29 November 2020 exercisable at 8.25 cents and expiring 29 November 2023.  
 
Two million (2,000,000) options exercisable at 3.7 cents and expiring 13 June 2020 were granted for 
marketing services provided in relation to the Placement (refer ASX announcement 6 June 2018).  
 
Post Balance Date: 
 
The Company has commenced proceedings in the Federal Court of Australia against the vendors (and 
associated parties) of C2B Solutions Pty Limited for various matters relating to the acquisition of C2B. 
 
Note 28. Dividends 
 

 Consolidated Group 
 2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 
No dividends were provided for or paid - - 
   
Dividends franking account   
Balance of franking account at year end arising from payment of 
provision for income tax 

779,446 779,446 

 
The above available amounts are based on the balance of the dividend franking account at year-end, 
adjusted for franking credits that will arise from the payment of the amount of the provision for income tax. 
 

Note 29. After Balance Date Events 
 
The Company has commenced proceedings in the Federal Court of Australia against the vendors (and 
associated parties) of C2B Solutions Pty Limited for various matters relating to the acquisition of C2B. 
 
Other than the above, there have been no events that have occurred since the reporting date which would 
materially impact on the financial position of the Company and its controlled entities. 
 
Note 30. Related Party Transactions 
 
Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms and conditions no more favourable 
than those available to other parties unless otherwise stated. Transactions with related parties: nil (2017: 
nil). 
 
Note 31. Contingent Liabilities 
 
There are no contingent liabilities at balance date. 
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Note 32. Leasing Commitments 
 

 Consolidated Group 
 2018 

$ 
2017 

$ 
Not later than one year 637,743     623,085 
Later than one year but not later than five years 846,771 2,043,394 
Minimum payments 1,484,514 2,666,479 
   
Less: future finance charges - - 
Present value of minimum payments - - 
Minimum hire-purchase payments - - 

 
Note 33. Financial Risk Management 
 
The Group does not engage in any significant transactions that are speculative in nature. 
 
The Group's financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, accounts receivable and payable, 
loans to and from subsidiaries. 
 
The Board of Directors monitor and manage financial risk exposures of the Group. The Board monitors the 
Group’s financial risk management policies and exposures and approves financial transactions within the 
scope of its authority. It also reviews the effectiveness of internal controls relating to counter party credit 
risk, currency risk, financing risk and interest rate risk. 
 
The Board’s overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the Group in meeting its financial targets while 
minimising potential adverse effects on financial performance. The main risks the Group is exposed to 
through its financial instruments are credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate risk. 
 
A. Interest Rate Risk 
 
The consolidated Group's exposure to interest rate risk which is the risk that a financial instruments value 
will fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates and the effective weighted average interest 
rates on classes of financial assets and financial liabilities, is as follows: 
 

Consolidated Group Weighted 
Average 
Interest 

Rate  
% 

Non- 
interest 
Bearing  

$ 

Fixed Interest Rate 
Maturing Floating 

Interest 
Rate  

$ 

Total  
$ 1 Year or 

Less  
$ 

1 to 5 
Years  

$ 
2018       
Financial assets:       
Cash and cash 
equivalents  

2.18  302,903 - 3,031,372 3,334,275 

Trade and other 
receivables 

 
3,713,149 - -   3,713,149 

  3,713,149 302,903 - 3,031,372 7,047,424 
Financial liabilities:       
Trade and other 
payables 

- 
1,847,589 - - - 1,847,589 

Income tax payable - 80,131 - - - 80,131 
Deferred 
consideration 

- 
- - - - - 

Borrowings  5.42  - 2,727,490 4,171,790 - 6,899,280 
   1,927,720 2,727,490 4,171,790 - 8,827,000 
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Note 33. Financial Risk Management (continued) 
 

 Weighted 
Average 
Interest 

Rate  
% 

Non- 
interest 
Bearing  

$ 

Fixed Interest Rate 
Maturing Floating 

Interest 
Rate  

$ 

Total  
$ 1 Year or 

Less  
$ 

1 to 5 
Years  

$ 
2017       
Financial assets:       
Cash and cash 
equivalents  

 2.24   -   295,942   -   8,775,799   9,071,741  

Trade and other 
receivables 

  9,652,703   -   -    9,652,703  

  9,652,703 295,942  8,775,799 18,724,444 
Financial liabilities:       
Trade and other 
payables 

 -   3,712,486   -   -   -  3,712,486 

Income tax payable  -   656,489   -   -   -  656,489 
Deferred 
consideration 

 -   4,626,606   -   -   -  4,626,606 

Borrowings  1.02   -   314,936   5,994,380   -  6,309,316 
  8,995,581 314,936 5,994,380 - 15,304,897 

 
B. Credit Risk 
 
The maximum exposure to credit risk by class of recognised financial assets at balance date, excluding the 
value of any collateral or other security held, is equivalent to the carrying value and classification of those 
financial assets (net of any provisions) as presented in the statement of financial position. 
 
The Group has during the financial year reduced its previous material credit risk exposure to a debtor under 
financial instruments entered into by the Company. The Group's exposure to Sybase Australia Pty Ltd was 
reduced as a result of the Company implementing direct connections in to carriers, thereby spreading 
debtor risk. 
 
C. Net Fair Values 
 
The carrying value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position 
approximates their respective net fair values. Fair values are determined by reference to standard terms 
and conditions, quoted market prices, where available, or discounting expected future cash flows. 
 
D. Liquidity Risk 
 
Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or 
otherwise meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities. The Group manages this risk through the 
following mechanisms: 
 

• preparing forward-looking cash flow analysis in relation to its operational, investing and financing 
activities; 

• using derivatives that are only traded in highly liquid markets; 
• monitoring undrawn credit facilities; 
• obtaining funding from a variety of sources; 
• maintaining a reputable credit profile; 
• managing credit risk related to financial assets; 
• only investing surplus cash with major financial institutions; and 
• comparing the maturity profile of financial liabilities with the realisation profile of financial assets. 
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Note 33. Financial Risk Management (continued) 
 
The table below reflects an undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities. Financial 
guarantee liabilities are treated as payable on demand since the Group has no control over the timing of 
any potential settlement of the liabilities. Cash flows realised from financial assets reflect management’s 
expectation as to the timing of realisation. Actual timing may therefore differ from that disclosed. The timing 
of cash flows presented in the table to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual settlement 
dates and does not reflect management’s expectations that banking facilities will be rolled forward. 
 

Consolidated Group Within 1 Year 1 to 5 Years Total 
Financial liabilities 
due for payment 

2018 
$ 

2017 
$ 

2018 
$ 

2017 
$ 

2018 
$ 

2017 
$ 

Loans  -   -  - - - - 
Trade and other 
payables 

1,847,589 3,712,486 - - 1,847,589 3,712,486 

Deferred 
consideration 

 -  4,626,606   -  -  -  4,626,606  

Income tax payable  80,131   656,489   -  -  80,131   656,489  
Borrowings  2,727,490   314,936   4,171,790   5,994,380   6,899,280   6,309,316  
Total contractual 
outflows 

4,655,210 9,310,517 4,171,790 5,994,380 8,827,000 15,304,897 

Financial assets – 
cash flows realisable 

      

Cash & cash 
equivalents 

3,334,276 9,071,741 - - 3,334,276 9,071,741 

Trade & loan 
receivables 

3,460,156 9,402,899 252,992 249,804 3,713,148 9,652,703 

Total anticipated 
inflows 

6,794,432 18,474,640 252,992 249,804 7,047,424 18,724,444 

Net (outflows) / 
inflows on financial 
instruments 

2,139,222 9,164,123 (3,918,798) (5,744,576) (1,779,576) 3,419,547 

 
E. Market Risk 
 

i. Interest Rate Risk 
 
Exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at the end of the 
reporting period whereby a future change in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair value of 
fixed rate financial instruments. The Group is also exposed to earnings volatility on floating rate 
instruments. The financial instruments that primarily expose the Group to interest rate risk are borrowings.  
 
ii. Foreign Exchange Risk 
 
Exposure to foreign exchange risk may result in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 
fluctuating due to movement in foreign exchange rates of currencies which the Group holds financial 
instruments which are other than the AUD functional currency of the Group. With instruments being held 
overseas by overseas operations, fluctuations in the US dollar and UK pound sterling may impact on the 
Group’s financial results. 
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Directors’ Declaration 

The directors of the Company declare that: 
 
A. the financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 25 to 65, are in accordance with the Corporations 

Act 2001 and: 
 

i. comply with Australian Accounting Standards, which as stated in accounting policy Note 1 to 
the financial statements, constitutes compliance with International Financial Reporting 
Standards (IFRS); and 
 

ii. give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2018 and of the performance for 
the year ended on that date of the consolidated Group; 

 
B. in the directors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay 

its debts as and when they become due and payable; and 
 
C. the directors have been given the declarations required by s295A of the Corporations Act 2001 from the 

Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer. 
 
At the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the Group will 
be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they may become subject. 
 

  
Neil Wiles 
CEO Executive Director 
31 August 2018 
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Additional Investor Information  
 
The following information is provided pursuant to Listing Rule 4.10 and is current as at as at  
15 October 2018: 
 
Distribution of Shareholders 

Size of Holding Total Holders Total Shares % of Ordinary Shares 
1 – 1,000 166 33,363 0.01 
1,001 – 5,000 489 1,675,045 0.30 
5,001 – 10,000 431 3,680,423 0.66 
10,001 – 100,000 1,293 52,925,541 9.54 
100,001 – and over 695 496,538,510 89.49 
Totals 3,074 554,852,882 100.00 

 
Unmarketable Parcels 
There are 1,761 shareholders with an unmarketable parcel of shares being a holding of less than 33,333 
shares each for a combined total of 18,921,411 shares. This is based on a closing price of $0.015 per 
share as at 12 October 2018 and represents 3.41% of the shares on issue. 
 
Substantial Shareholders  
There are currently no substantial shareholders. 

Top 20 Ordinary Shareholders 

Name Number of 
Ordinary 

Shares 

% of 
Ordinary 

Shares 
WAUGHDOC PTY LTD  22,176,639 4.00 
CONNAUGHT CONSULTANTS (FINANCE) PTY LTD  14,300,000 2.58 
MR NEIL WILES  12,000,000 2.16 
COMMUNITEE PTY LIMITED  8,283,000 1.49 
MR BRENDAN THOMAS BIRTHISTLE  6,180,000 1.11 
INCANI & PAPADOPOULOS SUPER PTY LTD  6,000,000 1.08 
KILNORT PTY LTD  5,300,000 0.96 
CITICORP NOMINEES PTY LIMITED 5,074,514 0.91 
CUSTOM AV PTY LTD  5,000,000 0.90 
MRS ANTHEE WIN 4,680,633 0.84 
JETAN PTY LTD  4,676,407 0.84 
MR ALBERT WIJEWEERA  4,670,588 0.84 
MR SCOTT DOUGLAS AMOS & MRS KAREN ELIZABETH AMOS  4,359,144 0.79 
FILMRIM PTY LTD  4,000,000 0.72 
MR JEREMY STEVEN MARPLE  3,950,000 0.71 
MARSIC MARINE HOLDINGS PTY LTD  3,700,000 0.67 
COVERDOVE PTY LTD  3,640,000 0.66 
MR KIEN MIN LAI  3,500,000 0.63 
PANRON PTY LTD  3,449,850 0.62 
MR JACQUES ALBERT NASSER  3,338,889 0.60 
Total Held by Top 20 128,279,664 23.12 
Total Remaining Balance 426,573,218 76.88 
Total Shares on Issue 554,852,882 100.00 
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Unlisted Options 
The Company has a total of 5,000,000 options on issue (all unlisted). 

Voting Rights 
The voting rights attached to each class of equity security are as follows: 
At shareholders’ meetings, each ordinary share is entitled to one vote when a poll is called, otherwise 
each shareholder has one vote on a show of hands. Option holders have the right to attend a meeting 
and ask questions but do not have any voting rights until the options have vested and been converted 
into ordinary shares. Voting rights are contained within Rule 34 of the Company’s Constitution lodged with 
the ASX on 24 March 2017. 
 
There is no current on market buy back. 
 
There are no shares or options subject to escrow. 
 
Corporate Directory 
Directors 
Ian Elliot Non-Executive Chairman 
Neil Wiles CEO & Managing Director 
David Haines Non-Executive Director 
 
Company Secretary 
Justin Clyne 
 
Registered Office and Principal Place of Business 
Level 23, 100 William Street, Sydney NSW 2011 
Telephone: +61 2 9360 3385 
Email: info@impelus.com  
 
Corporate Governance 
The Company’s Corporate Governance Statement is available on the Company’s website at  
www.impeluscorp.com/corporate-governance/  
 
Website 
www.impeluscorp.com 
 
ASX Code: IMS 
 
Auditors 
MNSA Chartered Accountants 
Level 1, 283 George Street, Sydney NSW 2000 
 
Share Registry 
Link Market Services Limited 
Level 12, 680 George Street, Sydney NSW 2000 
Telephone (within Australia): 1300 554 474 
(Outside Australia): + 61 1300 554 474 
Website: www.linkmarketservices.com.au 
 
Principal Bankers 
Commonwealth Bank of Australia 
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